
(TENTATIVE) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

September 19, 2023 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administrative Complex 
Meeting Chambers 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 
 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Watch us live on our YouTube page: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda. 

VI. Minutes - Consideration to approve the September 5, 2023 regular meeting minutes  

VII. Public Comments - Comments shall pertain to the agenda items only.  Should you wish to 
make remarks, clearly state your full name into the microphone before commencing to 
speak. 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website. 

IX. Consent Agenda - This section shall include all routine items for which there will be no 
discussion.  Should a need arise for a debate, the item can be moved to the appropriate area 
of the agenda. 

1. [2023-486 Agreement] 

Consideration to renew an Agreement with eGPS Solutions for an eGPS base station at 
the Admin Building 

 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ


(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – September 19, 2023 

2. [2023-487 Sanitation Releases] 

Consideration to approve Sanitation Releases as submitted by Administration Staff and 
authorized by the Tax Commissioner, Tax Assessor and Fire Chief  

3. [223-488 Purchase] 

Consideration to ratify and affirm approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for Sheriff's 
Office and Fire 

4. [2023-489 Form] 

Consideration to approve the 2023 ACCG Safety Program Discount Form  

X. Unfinished Business - Contains items held from a previous agenda. 

1. [2023-388 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by T&T Exley Properties to  
rezone 1,051 acres located off of Highway 21 from PD-MU to PD-MU, to allow for  the 
amendment of a Planned Development Map# 466D Parcels# 1,6,9,11 in the Second  
District (postponed 7/18/2023 and 8/15/2023) 

2. [2023-389 Second Reading] Katie Dunnigan 

Consideration to approve a Second Reading of an application T&T Exley  Properties to 
rezone 1,051 acres located off of Highway 21 from PD-MU to PD-MU, to allow for the 
amendment of a Planned Development Map# 466D Parcels#  1,6,9,11 in the Second 
District (postponed 7/18/2023 and 8/15/2023) 

3. [2023-435 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approval of an application by Warren M. Kennedy to  
rezone 1.13 acres located at 195 Elm Street from R-2 to B-3, to allow for a storage facility  
Map# 302 Parcel# 167 in the First District (postponed 8/1/2023 and 8/15/2023) 

4. [2023-436 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Warren M.  Kennedy 
to rezone 1.13 acres located at 195 Elm Street from R-2 to B-3, to allow for a  storage 
facility Map# 302 Parcel# 167 in the First District (postponed from 8/1/2023, postponed 
from 8/15/2023) 

XI. New Business 

1. [2023-490 Resolution] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 023-022 for the NAACP 

2. [2023-491 Resolution] 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 023-023 celebrating Florrie Bell White's 100th 
birthday celebration 

3. [2023-492 Plat/Deed/Agreement] Chelsie Fernald 

Consideration to approve a Final Plat, Warranty Deed, and Infrastructure Agreement  
submitted by BGN Investments, LLC for Covered Bridge, Phase 3 located off of Highway 
17 South, consisting of Map # 352 Parcel # 37 in the First District 

 

2



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – September 19, 2023 

4. [2023-493 Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 023-024 Requesting The Calling Of An Election 
To Impose A County One Percent TSPLOST Tax 

5. [2023-494 Resolution] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 023-0 for Surplus of various items 

6. [2023-495 Change Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Change Order# 2 for Task Order 23-REQ-007 with Hussey Gay 
Bell  

7. [2023-496 Agreement] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve a Service Agreement from Cintas to lease Automatic External 
Defibrillator (AED) Devices 

8. [2023-497 Agreement] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve to amend the Administrative Services Agreement with 
Meritain Health 

9. [2023-498 Agreement] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve a Business Associate and Client Services Agreement with Zoom 
Health LLC  

XII. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

XIII. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

XIV. Adjournment 

3



Staff Report 
Subject: Renewal of the Agreement with eGPS Solutions for an eGPS base station at 

the Admin Building  

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: IT 

Meeting Date: September 29, 2023 

Item Description: Renewal of the Agreement with eGPS Solutions 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the renewal of the 

Agreement with eGPS Solutions for an eGPS base station at the Admin Building located 

at 601 N. Laurel St. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The current agreement with eGPS Solutions allows for an electronics cabinet 

(base station – 33”x20”x14”) in the admin building, which connects to a GPS 

antenna fixed to the outside of the building. 

 The base station enables the county’s GPS units to be more accurate – without 

the base station, the units would have approx. sub-meter accuracy – with the 

base station, the unit’s accuracy is sub-centimeter or less.  

 The county provides eGPS with suitable 110 power, the cost is less than $1.00 

per month. 

 The term of the Agreement was for one year beginning October 6, 2009, with the 

option of twenty (20) one year renewals unless otherwise cancelled.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Board approval of the renewal of the Agreement with eGPS Solutions for an 

eGPS base station at the Admin Building located at 601 N. Laurel St. 

2. Cancel the agreement. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: 

Funding Source: NA 

Attachments: Letter of Agreement with eGPS Solutions 

 

 

 

 

4

Item IX. 1.



5

Item IX. 1.

FCharleton
Typewritten Text

FCharleton
Sticky Note
TERM : ONE YEAR FROM 2009 WITH 20 ANNUAL RENEWALS - ENDS 203090 DAYS NOTICE REQUIRED IF SELLING OR ABANDONING BUILDING



To: Tim Callanan, County Administrator 

From: Tasheena Shiggs

Date: September 19, 2023

Re: Sanitation Releases

Name Parcel #

1 Alice M. Smart 3810022

2
Charles K & Heather 

Hodges
3290020

3 Eloise Williams 0422A076

4
Gloria & Rodney 

Durrance
0370C003D00

5
Kerry Lane & Cindy D. 

Rahn
4050013

6 Randall A. Wood 0338016A01

7 Walter R. Bravo 3630026

8 Ann Oxley 0297B022

9 Horance Lee Brown III 3500005

10 Douglas T. Cihla 0413A007

11 Rufus C. Hamilton 0300B036

12
Richard & Edythe 

Frazier
4220037

13 Diana Lynn Spikes 0450D012

14 Mary Joy Mitchell

15
The G & R Group LLC ( 

T.M. Reiser)
2680016

206 Dasher Road Removal of second trash can 127.00$                 

150 Douglas Rd

Memo

These properties meet the requirements for release. These properties will be checked periodically 

in the future to ensure that they still meet the release requirements. If at any time they fail to meet 

the release requirements, the Sanitation Special Tax will be added back to the property tax bill. 

Property Address Reason for Request Release Amount

4503 HWY119 N
Removal of second trash can 740.00$                 

2273 HWY 17 S Removal of second trash can 370.00$                 

177 Sixth Street 486.00$                 

290 Shirley Drive
Removal of second trash can 972.00$                 

179 Hurley Smart Rd 681.00$                 

151 Reed Sreet
Removal of second trash can 243.00$                 

Removal of second trash can 127.00$                 

1035 Arnsdorff Loop

Structure is in deteriorating 

condition and not fit for 

habitation. 415.00$                 

162 Marion Avenue
Structure in deteriorating 

condition and not fit for 630.00$                 

3015 McCall Road Removal of second trash can 300.00$                 

2152 Sandhill Road Removal of second trash can 200.00$                 

118 Oak Street Removal of second trash can 381.00$                 

214 Old Tusculum Road

Structure is in deteriorating 

condition and not fit for 

habitation. 486.00$                 

1576 Mt Hope Road 
Structure not permanent 

residence 430.00$                 

6,588.00$              

If you have any questions please contact the Effingham County Sanitation Department (912) 754-4668 Ext 0

No structure on property

Structure is not permanent 

resident

6

Item IX. 2.



7

Item IX. 2.



8

Item IX. 2.



9

Item IX. 2.



10

Item IX. 2.



11

Item IX. 2.



12

Item IX. 2.



13

Item IX. 2.



14

Item IX. 2.



15

Item IX. 2.



16

Item IX. 2.



17

Item IX. 2.



18

Item IX. 2.



19

Item IX. 2.



20

Item IX. 2.



21

Item IX. 2.



22

Item IX. 2.



23

Item IX. 2.



24

Item IX. 2.



25

Item IX. 2.



26

Item IX. 2.



27

Item IX. 2.



28

Item IX. 2.



29

Item IX. 2.



30

Item IX. 2.



31

Item IX. 2.



32

Item IX. 2.



33

Item IX. 2.



34

Item IX. 2.



35

Item IX. 2.



36

Item IX. 2.



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for ECSO and Fire 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: ECSO and Fire 

Meeting Date: Sept 19, 2023  

Item Description: Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for ECSO and Fire Department 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval for these vehicles.   

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The vehicles included in this order are as follows: 

o 1- 2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 (Fire) – we were unable to receive the 

vehicle that was approved at the last meeting. 

o 1- 2023 RAM 1500 (ECSO) 

o 2- 2023 Ford F150 XL (ECSO) 

o 2- 2023 Ford F150 XLT (ECSO) 

o 2- 2023 Ford F150 Lariat (ECSO) 

o 1- 2023 Ford Expedition (ECSO) 

o 1- 2023 Ford Explorer (ECSO) 

o 12- 2023 Dodge Charger (ECSO) 

o 4- 2023 Dodge Durango (ECSO) 

 All of the ECSO vehicles will replace current aging fleet vehicles 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for ECSO and Fire  

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Purchasing, Finance, Department Heads 

Funding Source: Budget amendments may be needed if vehicles received this fiscal 

year 

Attachments: 

 

37

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners Date 08/25/2023

Bruton, Alison AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make RAM Model 1500

Series Big Horn/Lone Star 4x4 Crew Cab 144.5 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 505556

$ 64,280.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 500.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Capt Pete Hossalla

Exterior Color (0 P) Billet Silver Metallic Clearcoat / Acce

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Deluxe Cloth Bucket Seats

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 64,780.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 874.53 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 363.98 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,238.51 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,238.51 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 12,308.20 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham County Board of Commissioners
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7447226

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 1 of 8

County Manager August 28, 2023

38

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment C $ 3,000.00

Custom Equipment 2 - Leather, Steps, Exhaust upgrades C $ 3,500.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 6,500.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 6,500.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport C $ 500.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 500.00

Other Charges Total $ 500.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7447226

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 2 of 8

39

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 RAM 1500 Big Horn/Lone Star 4x4 Crew Cab 144.5 in. WB - US

Series ID: DT6H98

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $47,184 $49,720.00

Total Options $13,568.00 $14,745.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: PSC / MNV-(0 P) Billet Silver Metallic Clearcoat / Accent Color Door Handles

Interior: X9-(0 I) Black w/Deluxe Cloth Bucket Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

27Z Quick Order Package 27Z Big Horn NC NC

A73 Big Horn Level B Equipment Group $3,537.00 $3,845.00

AD6 Premium Lighting Group $916.00 $995.00

ADG Technology Group $1,008.00 $1,095.00

APA Monotone Paint STD STD

ASH Night Edition $2,341.00 $2,545.00

CAC Bucket Seats Included Included

CB9 2nd Row In Floor Storage Bins Included Included

CDP 4 Way Front Headrests Included Included

CFN Rear 60/40 Folding Seat Included Included

CMA Heated Front Seats Included Included

CSH 3 Rear Seat Head Restraints Included Included

CSK Rear Center Armrest Included Included

CSM Front Seat Back Map Pockets Included Included

CUF Full Length Floor Console Included Included

CUS Premium Overhead Console Included Included

DFR Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (8HP75) NC NC

DMH 3.92 Rear Axle Ratio $180.00 $195.00

DSA Anti-Spin Differential Rear Axle Included Included

EZL Engine: 5.7L V8 HEMI MDS VVT eTorque $2,801.00 $3,045.00

GFA Rear Window Defroster Included Included

GFE Rear Power Sliding Window Included Included

GNC Sun Visors w/Illuminated Vanity Mirrors Included Included

GNK Rear View Auto Dim Mirror Included Included

GNZ Auto Dim Exterior Driver Mirror Included Included

GRG Digital Rearview Mirror Included Included

GT4 Accent Color Premium Power Mirrors Included Included

GUK Black Premium Power Mirrors Included Included

GWJ Dual-Pane Panoramic Sunroof $1,468.00 $1,595.00

HAF Air Conditioning ATC w/Dual Zone Control Included Included

JAL Cluster 7.0" TFT Color Display Included Included

JKV_ 115V Auxiliary Power Outlet Included Included

JLN GPS Navigation Included Included

$62,747.00 $66,460.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7447226

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 3 of 8

40

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

JLP GPS Antenna Input Included Included

JLW Active Noise Control System Included Included

JPE Power 2-Way Driver Lumbar Adjust Included Included

JPV Power 8-Way Driver Seat Included Included

JWA Manual Adjust 4-Way Front Passenger Seat Included Included

LAY LED Taillamps Included Included

LBC Glove Box Lamp Included Included

LBK Head Up Display Included Included

LCA Dome Dual LED Reading Lamp Included Included

LCV LED Footwell Lighting Included Included

LE4 Black Exterior Mirrors Included Included

LE7 Black Painted Exterior Mirrors Caps Included Included

LEB Exterior Mirrors w/Supplemental Signals Included Included

LEC Exterior Mirrors Courtesy Lamps Included Included

LER Power-Folding Mirrors Included Included

LES Convex Wide-Angle Exterior Mirror Insert Included Included

LHE Rear Dome w/On/Off Switch Lamp Included Included

LHJ Overhead LED Lamps Included Included

LNJ Front Fog Lamps Included Included

LNV Front LED Fog Lamps Included Included

LPH LED CHMSL Lamp Included Included

LPX LED Reflector Headlamps Included Included

LSA Security Alarm Included Included

M17 Black Exterior Truck Badging Included Included

MBP Body Color Front Bumper Included Included

MBQ Body Color Rear Bumper w/Step Pads Included Included

ME6 RAM Grille Badge - Black Included Included

MFA Black Headlamp Bezels Included Included

MFM Grille Surround 1 Black Texture 2 Black Included Included

MNV Accent Color Door Handles Included Included

MSE Big Horn IP Badge Included Included

MW5 HEMI Badge Included Included

MYF Big Horn Badge Included Included

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

NEM Passive Tuned Mass Damper Included Included

NEP Dual Exhaust w/Black Tips Included Included

NER Dual Rear Exhaust w/Bright Tips Included Included

NFF 33 Gallon Fuel Tank $409.00 $445.00

NHJ Exterior Mirrors w/Heating Element Included Included

NHK Engine Block Heater $88.00 $95.00

NHS Heated Steering Wheel Included Included

NMC Heavy Duty Engine Cooling Included Included

PSC_02 (0 P) Billet Silver Metallic Clearcoat $272.00 $295.00

R07 All R1 High Radios Included Included

RAA All Radio Equipped Vehicles Included Included

RC3 9 Amplified Speakers w/Subwoofer Included Included

RDG Global Telematics Box Module (TBM) Included Included

RE8 HD Radio Included Included

RF5 Google Android Auto Included Included

RF7 USB Host Flip Included Included

RFA 12" Touchscreen Display Included Included

RFP Apple CarPlay Included Included

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7447226

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 4 of 8

41

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

RFV Disassociated Touchscreen Display Included Included

RS2 Media Hub w/2 Charge Only USBs Included Included

RSD SiriusXM Satellite Radio Included Included

RTF Integrated Center Stack Radio Included Included

RTM Connectivity - US/Canada Included Included

RTQ 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hot Spot Included Included

RTU SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

RTV Connected Travel & Traffic Services Included Included

T9 Deluxe Cloth Bucket Seats Included Included

TUB Tires: 275/55R20 OWL All Season Included Included

TZB Bridgestone Brand Tires Included Included

UBQ Radio: Uconnect 5 Nav w/12.0" Display Included Included

W1F 18" Aluminum Spare Wheel Included Included

WRP Wheels: 20" x 9.0" Premium Paint/Polished Included Included

X8S Center Console Parts Module Included Included

X9B SiriusXM Radio Service Included Included

X9E For Details, Visit DriveUconnect.com Included Included

X9H For More Info, Call 800-643-2112 Included Included

X9_01 (0 I) Black w/Deluxe Cloth Bucket Seats NC NC

XAN Blind Spot & Cross Path Detection $548.00 $595.00

XAP Power Adjustable Pedals Included Included

XBM Remote Start System Included Included

XBZ 48V Belt Starter Generator Included Included

XFH Class IV Receiver Hitch Included Included

XGD Universal Garage Door Opener Included Included

XH4 ParkSense Front/Rear Park Assist w/Stop Included Included

XHR 400W Inverter Included Included

XRB Integrated Voice Command w/Bluetooth Included Included

XS4 Black Interior Accents Included Included

Z6B GVWR: 6,900 lbs STD STD

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7447226

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 5 of 8

42

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  auto dimming power remote heated power folding side-view door mirrors with tilt down, turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Door Handles:  coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Dual Zone Infrared:  front dual-zone air conditioning w/infrared

      Power Sunroof:  front and rear express open/close sliding and tilting glass sunroof

      Sunroof Sunshade:  sunshade

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Adjustable Pedals:  power adjustable pedals

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Garage Door Opener:  garage door transmitter

      Emergency SOS:  SiriusXM Guardian emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  navigation system with voice activation

      Voice Recorder:  voice recorder

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Front Underseat Storage Tray:  front underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

      AC Power Outlet:  1 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/HD/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Amplifier:  506W amplifier

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 6 of 8

43

Item IX. 3.



      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  10 Alpine speakers

      Internet Access:  4G LTE Wi-Fi Hot Spot internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  power rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Heads up Display:  head-up display

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense front and rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 7 of 8

44

Item IX. 3.



      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  premium cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Deluxe Sound Insulation:  deluxe sound insulation

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  piano black/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Overhead Console Insert:  metal-look overhead console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  metal-look shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  piano black/chrome interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 395-hp, 5.7-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/25/2023 12:05:35 PM Page 8 of 8

45

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners Date 08/28/2023

Bruton, Alison AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Chevrolet Model Silverado 1500

Series LT w/1LT 4x4 Crew Cab 5.75 ft. box 147.4 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 505556

$ 50,534.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 750.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Hodges, Clint

Exterior Color (0 P) Red Hot

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 51,284.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 692.33 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 288.72 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 981.05 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 981.05 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 9,744.20 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham County Board of Commissioners
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451412

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 1 of 7

County Manager August 29, 2023

46

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Spray In Bedliner C $ 600.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 600.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 600.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport estimate C $ 750.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 750.00

Other Charges Total $ 750.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451412

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 2 of 7

47

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 LT w/1LT 4x4 Crew Cab 5.75 ft. box 147.4 in. WB - US

Series ID: CK10543

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $50,531.7 $53,700.00

Total Options $2,793.70 $3,070.00

Destination Charge $1,895.00 $1,895.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: G7C-(0 P) Red Hot

Interior: H0U-(0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

08R Not Equipped w/Functional Cab & Bed Power Outlets NA NA

1LT Preferred Equipment Group 1LT NC NC

360XM SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

A2X 10-Way Power Driver Seat w/Lumbar Included Included

A68 Rear 60/40 Folding Bench Seat (Folds Up) Included Included

ACCESS Chevrolet Connected Access Capable Included Included

AED Power Front Windows w/Passenger Express Down Included Included

AEQ Power Rear Windows w/Express Down Included Included

AKO Deep-Tinted Glass Included Included

AVJ Keyless Open & Start Included Included

AXG Power Front Windows w/Driver Express Up/Down Included Included

AZ3 40/20/40 Front Split-Bench Seat Included Included

B30 Color-Keyed Carpeting Floor Covering Included Included

B32 Front Rubberized Vinyl Floor Mats Included Included

B33 Rear Rubberized-Vinyl Floor Mats Included Included

B59_ Remote Start Package Included Included

BLUE Bluetooth For Phone Included Included

BTV Remote Vehicle Starter System Included Included

C49 Electric Rear-Window Defogger Included Included

C5Y GVWR: 7,100 lbs (3,221 kg) Included Included

CJ2 Dual-Zone Automatic Climate Control Included Included

COMP Compass Included Included

CTT Hitch Guidance Included Included

D31 Inside Rearview Mirror w/Tilt Included Included

DLF Heated Power-Adjustable Outside Mirrors Included Included

DP9 Chrome Mirror Caps Included Included

FE9 Federal Emissions Requirements NC NC

G7C_01 (0 P) Red Hot NC NC

G80 Auto-Locking Rear Differential Included Included

GU5 3.23 Rear Axle Ratio Included Included

H0U_01 (0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim NC NC

IOK Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 Premium System STD STD

JHD Hill Descent Control Included Included

$55,220.40 $58,665.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451412

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 3 of 7

48

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

JL1 Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $250.25 $275.00

K34 Electronic Cruise Control Included Included

K47 Heavy-Duty Air Filter Included Included

KA1 Heated Driver & Front Outboard Passenger Seats Included Included

KC4 External Engine Oil Cooler Included Included

KI3 Heated Steering Wheel Included Included

KNP Auxiliary External Transmission Oil Cooler Included Included

KW7 170 Amp Alternator Included Included

L84 Engine: 5.3L EcoTec3 V8 $1,451.45 $1,595.00

MHT Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic (MHT) Included Included

N10 Dual Exhaust w/Polished Outlets Included Included

N57 Wrapped Steering Wheel Included Included

NONSU Off-Road Suspension Included Included

NQH 2-Speed Transfer Case Included Included

NZZ Skid Plates Included Included

PAINT Solid Paint STD STD

PCL Convenience Package Included Included

PDU All-Star Edition Included Included

PED Chevy Safety Assist Included Included

PPW Wireless Phone Projection Included Included

QBR 255/70R17 AS BW Spare Tire Included Included

QK1 Standard Tailgate Included Included

QT5 EZ Lift Power Lock & Release Tailgate Included Included

R7N Not Equipped w/Steering Column Lock $-45.50 $-50.00

RCV Wheels: 18" x 8.5" Bright Silver Painted Aluminum Included Included

STDTM Cloth Seat Trim Included Included

TQ5 IntelliBeam Automatic High Beam On/Off Included Included

UBI Dual Rear USB Ports (Charge Only) Included Included

UDV 12.3" Multicolor Reconfigurable Digital Display Included Included

UE1 OnStar & Chevrolet Connected Services Capable Included Included

UE4 Following Distance Indicator Included Included

UEU Forward Collision Alert Included Included

UF2 LED Cargo Area Lighting Included Included

UHX Lane Keep Assist w/Lane Departure Warning Included Included

UHY Automatic Emergency Braking Included Included

UK3 Steering Wheel Audio Controls Included Included

UKJ Front Pedestrian Braking Included Included

UQF 6-Speaker Audio System Included Included

UTJ Theft Deterrent System (Unauthorized Entry) Included Included

UVB HD Rear Vision Camera Included Included

V76 Front Frame-Mounted Black Recovery Hooks Included Included

VV4 Wi-Fi Hot Spot Capable Included Included

XCK Tires: 265/65R18SL AT BW Included Included

XCQ 265/70R17SL AS BW Spare Tire Included Included

Z71 Z71 Off-Road Package $1,137.50 $1,250.00

Z82 Trailering Package Included Included

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451412

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 4 of 7

49

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Bumper Insert:  black front bumper insert

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Grille:  grille with chrome bar

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with front and rear 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Keyless Open/Keyless Start proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Window FOB Controls:  remote window controls

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front cupholder

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  covered bin instrument-panel storage

      Front Underseat Storage Tray:  locking front underseat storage tray

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  OnStar 4G LTE internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  IntelliBeam auto high-beam headlights

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 5 of 7

50

Item IX. 3.



      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Following Distance Indicator:  following distance alert

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

      Brake Pad Wear:  brake pad wear

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 6 of 7

51

Item IX. 3.



      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  StabiliTrak w/Proactive Roll Avoidance electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  simulated wood/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leatherette steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  rubber front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 355-hp, 5.3-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/28/2023 02:38:40 PM Page 7 of 7

52

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 08/29/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series XLT 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 60,409.95 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 0.00 Other:Courtesy Delivery Fee

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Harrington, Danny

Exterior Color (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Co

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 60,409.95 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 1,006.43 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.6660%

$ 301.45 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,307.88 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,307.88 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 24.15 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7455002

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 1 of 7

August 29, 2023County Manager

53

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment - Tires/Level Kit C $ 2,995.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 2,995.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 2,995.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7455002

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 2 of 7

54

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 XLT 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1E

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $46,955 $50,220.00

Total Options $6,771.00 $7,440.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: JS-(0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior: US-(0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats or Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD STD

18C_ Bright Polished Step Bars $578.00 $635.00

301A Equipment Group 301A Mid $1,120.00 $1,230.00

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

471 Onboard 400W Outlet $310.00 $340.00

524_ SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

52X-1 Auto Start-Stop Removal $-46.00 $-50.00

53A Trailer Tow Package $1,206.00 $1,325.00

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver Included Included

54R Power Glass Heated Sideview Mirrors NC NC

582 Radio: AM/FM SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

63R Center High-Mounted Stop Lamp CHMSL Camera Removal $-160.00 $-175.00

64H Wheels: 18" Silver Painted Aluminum $87.00 $95.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller Included Included

763 360 Degree Camera $696.00 $765.00

8INCH 8" Productivity Screen in Instrument Cluster Included Included

91P_ 8-Way Power Driver's Seat w/Power Lumbar Included Included

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 $2,329.00 $2,560.00

DZTEMP Dual Zone Electronic Automatic Temperature Control Included Included

JS_01 (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic NC NC

KEYPAD SecuriCode Drivers Side Keyless-Entry Keypad Included Included

MIRROR Auto-Dimming Rearview Mirror Included Included

NNGV6 GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

PNTTBL01 Paint Table : Monotone Paint Application $0.00 $0.00

PTBA Pro Trailer Backup Assist & Pro Trailer Hitch Assist Included Included

RSEAT Rear Under-Seat Storage Included Included

T84 Tires: 275/65R18 BSW A/T Included Included

U Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats $269.00 $295.00

US_01 (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats or Cloth 
40/Console/40 Front Seats NC NC

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

WRPWHL Wrapped Steering Wheel Included Included

$55,721.00 $59,655.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7455002

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 3 of 7

55

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio $382.00 $420.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7455002

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 4 of 7

56

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Grille:  black w/chrome surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - smart device only (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Rear Underseat Storage Tray:  rear underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

      AC Power Outlet:  3 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  7 speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 5 of 7

57

Item IX. 3.



      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 6 of 7

58

Item IX. 3.



      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:27 PM Page 7 of 7

59

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 09/06/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series Lariat 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 71,036.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 0.00 Other:Courtesy Delivery Fee

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Chief Bush

Exterior Color (0 P) Carbonized Gray Metallic

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 71,036.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 958.99 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 395.63 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,354.62 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,354.62 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 13,496.60 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7471147

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 1 of 7

60

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Legacy Bedliners C $ 595.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 595.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 595.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7471147

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 2 of 7

61

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 Lariat 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1E

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $57,287 $61,270.00

Total Options $6,462.00 $7,100.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: M7-(0 P) Carbonized Gray Metallic

Interior: HB-(0 I) Black w/Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD STD

153 Front License Plate Bracket NC NC

16P Inclination/Intrusion Sensor Removal $-46.00 $-50.00

18L 6" Extended Bright Polished Running Boards $914.00 $1,005.00

413_ Skid Plates Included Included

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

47R Tray Style Floor Liner $37.00 $40.00

501A Equipment Group 501A Standard NC NC

52X-1 Auto Start-Stop Removal $46.00 $50.00

53A Trailer Tow Package $1,206.00 $1,325.00

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver Included Included

55A FX4 Off-Road Package $997.00 $1,095.00

55ADEC 4x4 FX4 Off-Road Bodyside Decal Included Included

55AHDC Hill Descent Control Included Included

55AOSA Off-Road Tuned Front Shock Absorbers Included Included

55S Onboard Scale w/Smart Hitch $592.00 $650.00

583 Radio: B&O Sound System by Bang & Olufsen Included Included

60P Partitioned Lockable Fold-Flat Storage $195.00 $215.00

64L Wheels: 20" Chrome-Like PVD $1,361.00 $1,495.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller Included Included

94X Steering Wheel Heat Removal (DISC) $-128.00 $-140.00

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 $1,242.00 $1,365.00

H Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats Included Included

HB_01 (0 I) Black w/Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats NC NC

M7_05 (0 P) Carbonized Gray Metallic NC NC

MONOSK Monotube Rear Shocks Included Included

NNGV6 GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

PTBA Pro Trailer Backup Assist & Pro Trailer Hitch Assist Included Included

ROCKMD Rock Crawl Mode Included Included

SEC Advanced Security Pack Removal $46.00 $50.00

SYNC SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

$65,744.00 $70,365.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7471147

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 3 of 7

62

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

T24 Tires: 275/60R20 BSW A/T Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio Included Included

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7471147

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 4 of 7

63

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  auto dimming power remote heated power folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  chrome

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Paint Type:  badging

      Grille:  chrome grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Seat Memory:  2 driver memory seat settings (includes door mirrors, pedals,)

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  keyfob cargo access remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Intelligent Access proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Adjustable Pedals:  power adjustable pedals

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Garage Door Opener:  garage door transmitter

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Rear Underseat Storage Tray:  locking rear underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

      AC Power Outlet:  3 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 5 of 7

64

Item IX. 3.



      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/HD/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Amplifier:  640W amplifier

      Digital Signal Processor:  digital signal processor

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  8 B&O Sound System by Bang & Olufsen speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite Quad Beam LED LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  power rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Inclinometer:  inclinometer

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 6 of 7

65

Item IX. 3.



      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Ventilated Seats:  ventilated front seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  leather front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  leather/chrome shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 09/06/2023 06:24:25 PM Page 7 of 7

66

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners Date 08/31/2023

Bruton, Alison AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model Expedition

Series XLT 4dr 4x2

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 505556

$ 64,772.50 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 700.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name TBD

Exterior Color (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior Color (0 I) Black Onyx w/ActiveX-Trimmed 1st & 2nd

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 65,472.50 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 1,090.77 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.6660%

$ 326.49 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,417.26 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,417.26 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 26.30 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham County Board of Commissioners
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7463585

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 1 of 7

County Manager August 31, 2023

67

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Window Guards/Door Panels - dealer add C $ 195.00

Floor Mat - dealer add C $ 295.00

Wheel Locks - dealer add C $ 195.00

Window Tint - dealer add C $ 595.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 1,280.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 1,280.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport Estimate C $ 700.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 700.00

Other Charges Total $ 700.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7463585

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 2 of 7

68

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford Expedition XLT 4dr 4x2 - US

Series ID: U1H

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $57,399 $59,790.00

Total Options $5,912.00 $6,290.00

Destination Charge $1,895.00 $1,895.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: JS-(0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior: VH-(0 I) Black Onyx w/ActiveX-Trimmed 1st & 2nd Row Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

110VAC 110V/150W AC Power Outlet Included Included

122WB 122" Wheelbase STD STD

202A Equipment Group 202A High Package $3,567.00 $3,795.00

21D 2nd Row Power-Folding Captain's Chairs Included Included

3HD 3rd Row Vinyl Head Restraints Included Included

425 50 States Emissions System STD STD

44U Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic w/SelectShift Included Included

50T Special Edition Package $2,345.00 $2,495.00

62S SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

90D Heated/Ventilated Front Seats Included Included

998 Engine: 3.5L EcoBoost V6 Included Included

ACC Intelligent Adaptive Cruise Control Included Included

AMBIEN Ambient Lighting Included Included

ASP Advanced Security Pack Included Included

BUMP Accent Color Painted Rear Bumper Included Included

CHARG Wireless Charging Pad Included Included

HSW Heated Steering Wheel Included Included

INTA 4-Door Intelligent Access (Lock/Unlock) Included Included

INTER Intersection Assist Included Included

JS_02 (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic NC NC

LAMPR LED Reflector Headlamps Included Included

LAMPS LED Fog Lamps w/Black Painted Bezel Included Included

MIRROR Power-Folding Sideview Mirrors w/Autofold Included Included

NAVI Connected Built-In Navigation Included Included

NONTR Tires: P275/55R20 AS BSW Included Included

NONWL Wheels: 20" Bright Machined Aluminum Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

PEDALS Power-Adjustable Pedals w/Memory Included Included

PILOP Ford Co-Pilot360 Assist+ Included Included

PSENS Front Parking Sensors Included Included

PWLIFT Power Liftgate Included Included

REMOTE Remote Start Included Included

RUNBRD Bright Chrome Plated Accent Platform Running Boards Included Included

$65,206.00 $67,975.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7463585

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 3 of 7

69

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

SECURE SecuriCode Keyless Entry Pad Included Included

STDGV GVWR: 7,200 lbs Included Included

STDRD Radio: AM/FM Stereo w/MP3 Capable Included Included

STEER Evasive Steering Included Included

SYNC SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

TILT Power Tilt/Telescopic Steering Wheel w/Memory Included Included

TURN Sideview Mirrors w/Turn Signal Indicators Included Included

V ActiveX-Trimmed 1st & 2nd Row Seats Included Included

VCON Vinyl Center Console Included Included

VH_03 (0 I) Black Onyx w/ActiveX-Trimmed 1st & 2nd Row Seats NC NC

X15 3.31 Axle Ratio Included Included

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7463585

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 4 of 7

70

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated power folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      Roof Rack:  rails only

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Body Side Cladding:  body-coloured bodyside cladding

      Grille:  black w/chrome surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Seat Memory:  3 driver memory seat settings (includes door mirrors, steering wheel, pedals,)

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls, Intelligent Adaptive Cruise Control distance pacing

      Rear Window Remote Release:  keyfob rear window remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Intelligent Access proximity key

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with power tilting, power telescoping

      Adjustable Pedals:  power adjustable pedals

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated auxiliary driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Garage Door Opener:  garage door transmitter

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  4 12V DC power outlets

      AC Power Outlet:  1 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 5 of 7

71

Item IX. 3.



      Antenna:  window grid antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  flip-up rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Forward and Reverse Sensing System front and rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Following Distance Indicator:  following distance alert

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 6 of 7

72

Item IX. 3.



      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Tracker System:  tracker system

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

      3rd Row Headrests:  3 power adjustable third row head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 7

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Ventilated Seats:  ventilated front seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear power reclining bucket seat

      Rear Seat Fore/Aft:  manual rear seat fore/aft adjustment

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Mounted Armrests:  rear seat mounted armrest

      3rd Row Seat Type:  fixed third row power 60-40 split-bench seat

      3rd Row Electric Control:  fold into floor third row seat

      Leather Upholstery:  ActiveX leatherette front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Shift Knob Trim:  metal-look shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  metal-look interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

Standard Engine:

      Engine 380-hp, 3.5-liter V-6 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 08/31/2023 03:06:45 PM Page 7 of 7

73

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P1258859

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 3

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           Silver Metallic Clearcoat  /  Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

7439361 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $52,360.00 60 1.6660% $872.32 $261.64 $0.00 $1,133.96 $20.80 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439362 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $52,360.00 60 1.6660% $872.32 $261.64 $0.00 $1,133.96 $20.80 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439363 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $52,360.00 60 1.6660% $872.32 $261.64 $0.00 $1,133.96 $20.80 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

Total Monthly Payment for 3 vehicles: $3,401.88 Total Initial Charges for 3 vehicles: $117.00

1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

Lessee: Effingham Sheriff's Department

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 1 of 7

August 29, 2023County Manager
74

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P1258859

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 3

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           Silver Metallic Clearcoat  /  Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

7439361

Capitalized Price $42,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,360.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439362

Capitalized Price $42,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,360.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439363

Capitalized Price $42,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,360.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 2 of 7

75

Item IX. 3.



 

Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Aftermarket & Other Costs Proposal #: P1258859

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 3

Aftermarket Equipment

Quote Driver Description Capitalized Price Billed Price

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           Silver Metallic Clearcoat  /  Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

7439361 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439362 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439363 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment $30,000.00 $0.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 3 of 7

76

Item IX. 3.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US

Series ID: WDEE75

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 3

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 41,228.00 $ 41,415.00

Total Options $ 774.00 $ 860.00

Destination Charge $ 1,595.00 $ 1,595.00

Total Price $ 43,597.00 $ 43,870.00

Exterior: PSE - Silver Metallic Clearcoat

Interior: X9 - Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

2BZ Quick Order Package 2BZ NC NC

A7 Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl $ 121.00 $ 135.00

ADL Skid Plate Group $ 297.00 $ 330.00

APA Monotone Paint Application STD STD

C1J #7 Seat Foam Cushion Included Included

CDS Vinyl 2nd Row Seat Included Included

DFT Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (850RE) STD STD

DLK 3.45 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

ERC Engine: 3.6L V6 24V VVT UPG I w/ESS STD STD

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

PSE_01 Silver Metallic Clearcoat $ 356.00 $ 395.00

TXQ Tires: 255/60R18 On/Off Road STD STD

UAM Radio: Uconnect 4 w/8.4" Display STD STD

WBN Wheels: 18" x 8.0" Black Steel STD STD

X9_01 Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl NC NC

XEE Fuel Tank Skid Plate Shield Included Included

XEF Transfer Case Skid Plate Shield Included Included

XEU Front Suspension Skid Plate Included Included

XF3 Underbody Skid Plate Included Included

Z6K GVWR: 6,500 lbs STD STD

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 4 of 7

77

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  liftgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Window FOB Controls:  remote window controls

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  3 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off projector beam LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 5 of 7

78

Item IX. 3.



      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Door Curb/Courtesy Lights:  2 door curb/courtesy lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense with Stop rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  compact spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 6 of 7

79

Item IX. 3.



      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 4-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Fold Flat Passenger Seat:  fold flat passenger seat

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front seat upholstery

      Rear Seat Material:  vinyl rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  leatherette/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

      Concealed Cargo Storage:  concealed cargo storage

Standard Engine:

      Engine 293-hp, 3.6-liter V-6 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:44 PM Page 7 of 7

80

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 09/07/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series Lariat 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 6.5 ft. box 157 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 68,044.95 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 0.00 Other:Courtesy Delivery Fee

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Jamie Thompson

Exterior Color (0 P) Avalanche

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Leather-Tri

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 68,044.95 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 1,133.63 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.6660%

$ 336.58 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,470.21 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,470.21 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 27.15 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7474368

Printed On 09/07/2023 04:35:22 PM Page 1 of 5

81

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 Lariat 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 6.5 ft. box 157 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1E

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $59,106 $63,215.00

Total Options $3,924.00 $4,310.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: DR-(0 P) Avalanche

Interior: HS-(0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

157WB 157" Wheelbase STD STD

16P Inclination/Intrusion Sensor Removal $-46.00 $-50.00

413_ Skid Plates Included Included

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

43V Twin Panel Moonroof $1,361.00 $1,495.00

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

501A Equipment Group 501A Standard NC NC

55A FX4 Off-Road Package $997.00 $1,095.00

55ADEC 4x4 FX4 Off-Road Bodyside Decal Included Included

55AHDC Hill Descent Control Included Included

55AOSA Off-Road Tuned Front Shock Absorbers Included Included

583 Radio: B&O Sound System by Bang & Olufsen Included Included

64L Wheels: 20" Chrome-Like PVD $1,361.00 $1,495.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $251.00 $275.00

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 Included Included

DR_02 (0 P) Avalanche NC NC

H Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats Included Included

HS_02 (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Leather-Trimmed Bucket Seats NC NC

MONOSK Monotube Rear Shocks Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

ROCKMD Rock Crawl Mode Included Included

STDGV GVWR: 7,150 lbs Payload Package Included Included

SYNC SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

T24 Tires: 275/60R20 BSW A/T Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio Included Included

$65,025.00 $69,520.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7474368

Printed On 09/07/2023 04:35:22 PM Page 2 of 5

82

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  auto dimming power remote heated power folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  chrome

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Paint Type:  badging

      Grille:  chrome grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Power Sunroof:  front and rear express open/close sliding and tilting glass sunroof

      Sunroof Sunshade:  sunshade

      Seat Memory:  2 driver memory seat settings (includes door mirrors, pedals,)

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  keyfob cargo access remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Intelligent Access proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Adjustable Pedals:  power adjustable pedals

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Garage Door Opener:  garage door transmitter

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Rear Underseat Storage Tray:  rear underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

      AC Power Outlet:  3 120V AC power outlet

Printed On 09/07/2023 04:35:22 PM Page 3 of 5

83

Item IX. 3.



Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/HD/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Amplifier:  640W amplifier

      Digital Signal Processor:  digital signal processor

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  8 B&O Sound System by Bang & Olufsen speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite Quad Beam LED LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  power rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Inclinometer:  inclinometer

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

Printed On 09/07/2023 04:35:22 PM Page 4 of 5

84

Item IX. 3.



      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  AdvanceTrac with Curve Control electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Ventilated Seats:  ventilated front seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  leather front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  leather/chrome shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 09/07/2023 04:35:22 PM Page 5 of 5

85

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 09/01/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P1276491

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 1

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2023 Ford Explorer XLT 4dr 4x2 - US           (0 P) Star White Metallic Tri-Coat  /  (0 I) Ebony/Light Slate w/Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs

7465982 Dunn, Leslie GA 0.0000% 25,000 $44,957.00 60 1.3500% $606.92 $251.38 $0.00 $858.30 $8,541.80 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

Total Monthly Payment for 1 vehicles: $858.30 Total Initial Charges for 1 vehicles: $39.00

1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

Lessee: Effingham Sheriff's Department

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 1 of 6

September 1, 2023
86

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 09/01/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P1276491

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 1

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2023 Ford Explorer XLT 4dr 4x2 - US           (0 P) Star White Metallic Tri-Coat  /  (0 I) Ebony/Light Slate w/Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs

7465982

Capitalized Price $44,957.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $44,957.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 2 of 6

87

Item IX. 3.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Ford Explorer XLT 4dr 4x2 - US

Series ID: K7D

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 1

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 37,027.00 $ 38,570.00

Total Options $ 6,275.00 $ 6,675.00

Destination Charge $ 1,595.00 $ 1,595.00

Total Price $ 44,897.00 $ 46,840.00

Exterior: AZ - (0 P) Star White Metallic Tri-Coat

Interior: SY - (0 I) Ebony/Light Slate w/Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

119WB 119.1" Wheelbase STD STD

16B Front & Second Row Floor Liners (16B) $ 188.00 $ 200.00

202A Equipment Group 202A $ 3,328.00 $ 3,540.00

21F Cargo Area Management System $ 155.00 $ 165.00

425 50 State Emissions System STD STD

44T Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

59W 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hotspot Credit $ -18.00 $ -20.00

68M XLT Sport Appearance Package $ 1,875.00 $ 1,995.00

99H Engine: 2.3L EcoBoost I-4 Included Included

AZ_02 (0 P) Star White Metallic Tri-Coat $ 747.00 $ 795.00

CONECT FordPass Connect Included Included

FOG LED Fog Lamps Included Included

HEATW Heated Steering Wheel Included Included

KEYPAD SecuriCode Keyless Entry Keypad Included Included

NONTR Tires: P255/55R20 AS BSW Included Included

NONWL Wheels: 20" 10-Spoke Carbonized Gray-Painted Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

RMSTRT Remote Start System Included Included

S Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs Included Included

STDAX 3.58 Non-Limited-Slip Rear Axle Ratio Included Included

STDGV GVWR: TBD Included Included

STDRD Radio: AM/FM Stereo Included Included

SYNC SYNC 3 Communications & Entertainment System Included Included

SY_01 (0 I) Ebony/Light Slate w/Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs NC NC

TIPS Dual Chrome Exhaust Tips Included Included

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 3 of 6

88

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with grey rub strip

      Front Bumper Insert:  metal-look front bumper insert

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      Roof Rack:  rails only

      Body Side Cladding:  black bodyside cladding

      Grille:  grey grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  power cargo access remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Intelligent Access proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated auxiliary driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 3 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  4 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper with heating wiper park

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 4 of 6

89

Item IX. 3.



      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Ignition Switch:  ignition switch light

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Following Distance Indicator:  following distance alert

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Level Gauge:  oil level gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  compact spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  spare tire mounted inside under cargo

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 5 of 6

90

Item IX. 3.



      Electronic Stability:  AdvanceTrac w/Roll Stability Control electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

      3rd Row Headrests:  2 manual adjustable third row head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear manual reclining captain seat

      Rear Seat Fore/Aft:  manual rear seat fore/aft adjustment

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Mounted Armrests:  rear seat mounted armrest

      3rd Row Seat Type:  fixed third row 50-50 bench seat

      3rd Row Electric Control:  fold into floor third row seat

      Leather Upholstery:  ActiveX leatherette front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  leatherette door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  piano black/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Mats:  carpet and rubber cargo mat

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

      Concealed Cargo Storage:  concealed cargo storage

      Cargo Net:  cargo net

Standard Engine:

      Engine 300-hp, 2.3-liter I-4 (premium)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD

Printed On 09/01/2023 10:40:55 AM Page 6 of 6

91

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P1258785

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 12

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2023 Dodge Charger Police 4dr Rear-Wheel Drive Sedan - US           Triple Nickel Clearcoat  /  Black w/Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats or Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear

7439156 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439157 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439158 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439159 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439160 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439161 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439162 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439163 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439164 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439165 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439166 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7439167 TBD GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,060.00 60 1.6660% $800.68 $240.38 $0.00 $1,041.06 $19.20 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

Total Monthly Payment for 12 vehicles: $12,492.72 Total Initial Charges for 12 vehicles: $468.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 1 of 9

92

Item IX. 3.



1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

Lessee: Effingham Sheriff's Department

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P1258785

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 12

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 2 of 9

County Manager August 29, 2023
93

Item IX. 3.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P1258785

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 12

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2023 Dodge Charger Police 4dr Rear-Wheel Drive Sedan - US           Triple Nickel Clearcoat  /  Black w/Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats or Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear

7439156

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439157

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439158

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439159

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439160

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439161

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439162

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439163

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439164

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439165 Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 3 of 9

94

Item IX. 3.



Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439166

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7439167

Capitalized Price $38,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,060.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 4 of 9

95

Item IX. 3.



 

Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/29/2023

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Aftermarket & Other Costs Proposal #: P1258785

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 12

Aftermarket Equipment

Quote Driver Description Capitalized Price Billed Price

2023 Dodge Charger Police 4dr Rear-Wheel Drive Sedan - US           Triple Nickel Clearcoat  /  Black w/Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats or Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear

7439156 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439157 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439158 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439159 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439160 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439161 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439162 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439163 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439164 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439165 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439166 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

7439167 TBD Custom Equipment $10,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment $120,000.00 $0.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 5 of 9

96

Item IX. 3.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Dodge Charger Police 4dr Rear-Wheel Drive Sedan - US

Series ID: LDDE48

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 12

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 42,224.00 $ 43,085.00

Total Options $ 582.00 $ 645.00

Destination Charge $ 1,595.00 $ 1,595.00

Total Price $ 44,401.00 $ 45,325.00

Exterior: PSE - Triple Nickel Clearcoat

Interior: X9 - Black w/Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats or Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

26A Quick Order Package 26A NC NC

APA Monotone Paint Application STD STD

C8 Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats STD STD

DFK Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (8HP70) STD STD

EZH Engine: 5.7L V8 HEMI MDS VVT STD STD

LNF Black Left Spot Lamp $ 211.00 $ 235.00

LNX LED Spot Lamps $ 136.00 $ 150.00

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

PSE_02 Triple Nickel Clearcoat $ 86.00 $ 95.00

TBH Full Spare Tire Relocation Bracket $ 149.00 $ 165.00

TWW Tires: P225/60R18 BSW Performance STD STD

UAG Radio: Uconnect 4 w/7" Display STD STD

WEJ Wheels: 18" x 7.5" Steel STD STD

X9_01 Black w/Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket & Rear Bench Seats or Heavy Duty Cloth Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear NC NC

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 6 of 9

97

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  trunk

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  power cargo access remote release

      Fuel Remote Release:  power fuel remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (front doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Keyless Go proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated auxiliary driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/Satellite-prep with seek-scan

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  window grid antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off projector beam LED low/high beam headlamps

      Underhood Light:  underhood light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent speed-sensitive wipers wipers with heating jets

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  light-tinted windows

      Door Curb/Courtesy Lights:  4 door curb/courtesy lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 7 of 9

98

Item IX. 3.



      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  spare tire mounted inside under cargo

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Fuel Flap Locking Type:  locking fuel flap included with power door locks

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      AntiWhiplashFrontHeadrests:  anti-whiplash front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Rear Seat Type:  rear bench seat

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 8 of 9

99

Item IX. 3.



      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  vinyl/rubber cargo space

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

Standard Engine:

      Engine 370-hp, 5.7-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:54:20 PM Page 9 of 9

100

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 08/29/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Dodge Model Durango

Series Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 54,603.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 215.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name 17327

Exterior Color (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Inse

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 54,818.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 913.27 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.6660%

$ 273.80 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,187.07 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,187.07 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 21.80 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7452161

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 1 of 6

County Manager August 29, 2023

101

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment C $ 11,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 11,000.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 11,000.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport C $ 215.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 215.00

Other Charges Total $ 215.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7452161

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 2 of 6

102

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US

Series ID: WDEE75

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $41,228 $41,415.00

Total Options $3,722.00 $4,135.00

Destination Charge $1,595.00 $1,595.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: PDN-(0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat

Interior: X9-(0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

22Z Quick Order Package 22Z NC NC

A7 Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl $121.00 $135.00

APA Monotone Paint Application STD STD

BCF 800 Amp Maintenance Free Battery Included Included

C1J #7 Seat Foam Cushion Included Included

CDS Vinyl 2nd Row Seat Included Included

DFD Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (8HP70) NC NC

DKA 2 Speed On Demand Transfer Case Included Included

DPM 3.09 Rear Axle Ratio Included Included

DR1 230MM Rear Axle Included Included

EZH Engine: 5.7L V8 HEMI MDS VVT $2,696.00 $2,995.00

LNF Black Left LED Spot Lamp $549.00 $610.00

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

NEX Dual Rear Exhaust w/Bright Tips Included Included

NHA Engine Oil Cooler Included Included

PDN_01 (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat $356.00 $395.00

TXQ Tires: 255/60R18 On/Off Road STD STD

UAM Radio: Uconnect 4 w/8.4" Display STD STD

WBN Wheels: 18" x 8.0" Black Steel STD STD

X9_01 (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl NC NC

Z6J GVWR: 7,100 lbs Included Included

$46,545.00 $47,145.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7452161

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 3 of 6

103

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  liftgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Window FOB Controls:  remote window controls

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  3 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off projector beam LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 4 of 6

104

Item IX. 3.



      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Door Curb/Courtesy Lights:  2 door curb/courtesy lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense with Stop rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  compact spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 5 of 6

105

Item IX. 3.



      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 4-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Fold Flat Passenger Seat:  fold flat passenger seat

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front seat upholstery

      Rear Seat Material:  vinyl rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  leatherette/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

      Concealed Cargo Storage:  concealed cargo storage

Standard Engine:

      Engine 360-hp, 5.7-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:04:03 PM Page 6 of 6

106

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 08/29/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series XLT 4x2 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 58,835.50 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 600.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Williamson, Ivy

Exterior Color (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic / Chrome Door &

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Co

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 59,435.50 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 802.38 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 334.17 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,136.55 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,136.55 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 11,292.70 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451777

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 1 of 7

August 29, 2023County Manager

107

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment C $ 3,000.00

Custom Equipment 2 - All Weather Floor Liners C $ 395.00

Spray In Bedliner C $ 995.00

Window Tint - Ceramic Window Tint C $ 595.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 4,985.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 4,985.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport estimate C $ 600.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 600.00

Other Charges Total $ 600.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451777

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 2 of 7

108

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 XLT 4x2 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1C

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $43,346 $46,360.00

Total Options $7,481.00 $8,220.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: JS / 86BDOR-(0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic / Chrome Door & Tailgate Handles w/Body-Color Bezel

Interior: US-(0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats or Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD STD

18C_ Bright Polished Step Bars Included Included

302A Equipment Group 302A High $3,599.00 $3,955.00

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

435 Power-Sliding Rear Window $319.00 $350.00

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

471 Onboard 400W Outlet Included Included

50M Interior Work Surface $178.00 $195.00

524__ SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver Included Included

54R Power Glass Heated Sideview Mirrors Included Included

582 Radio: AM/FM SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

59R_ Remote Start System w/Remote Tailgate Release Included Included

59S LED Sideview Mirror Spotlights Included Included

64T Wheels: 18" Chrome-Like PVD Included Included

655_ Extended Range 36 Gallon Fuel Tank $405.00 $445.00

86B XLT Chrome Appearance Package Included Included

86BDOR Chrome Door & Tailgate Handles w/Body-Color Bezel Included Included

86BGRL 2-Bar Style Grille w/Chrome 2 Minor Bars Included Included

86BTIP Chrome Single-Tip Exhaust Included Included

8INCH 8" Productivity Screen in Instrument Cluster Included Included

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 $2,329.00 $2,560.00

BOXZNE Zone Lighting Included Included

DZTEMP Dual Zone Electronic Automatic Temperature Control Included Included

HFRONT Heated Front Seats Included Included

JS_01 (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic NC NC

KEYPAD SecuriCode Drivers Side Keyless-Entry Keypad Included Included

LEDLMP LED Reflector Headlamps Included Included

MIRROR Auto-Dimming Rearview Mirror Included Included

NONGV2 GVWR: 6,800 lbs Payload Package Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

PNTTBL01 Paint Table : Monotone Paint Application $0.00 $0.00

PSHBUT Intelligent Access w/Push Button Start Included Included

$52,822.00 $56,575.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451777

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 3 of 7

109

Item IX. 3.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

PWRDRV 10-Way Power Driver & Passenger Seats Included Included

RSEAT Rear Under-Seat Storage Included Included

T82 Tires: 265/60R18 BSW A/S Included Included

U Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats $269.00 $295.00

US_01 (0 I) Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Cloth 40/Console/40 Front Seats or Cloth 
40/Console/40 Front Seats NC NC

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

WRPWHL Wrapped Steering Wheel Included Included

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio $382.00 $420.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451777

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 4 of 7

110

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Door Handles:  chrome

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  chrome grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Voice Activated A/C:  voice activated air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  keyfob cargo access remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Intelligent Access proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Rear Underseat Storage Tray:  rear underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

      AC Power Outlet:  3 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  7 speakers

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 5 of 7

111

Item IX. 3.



      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  power rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 6 of 7

112

Item IX. 3.



      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  AdvanceTrac with Curve Control electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 08/29/2023 01:00:02 PM Page 7 of 7

113

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 08/29/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series XL 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 57,636.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 0.00 Other:Courtesy Delivery Fee

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name HUMANE

Exterior Color (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/4

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 57,636.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 778.09 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 324.14 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,102.23 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,102.23 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 10,950.60 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451670

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 1 of 6

August 29, 2023County Manager

114

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment C $ 3,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 3,000.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 3,000.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451670

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 2 of 6

115

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 XL 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1E

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $43,366 $45,410.00

Total Options $5,974.00 $6,565.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: JS-(0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior: JB-(0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

101A Equipment Group 101A Standard $-683.00 $-750.00

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD STD

153 Front License Plate Bracket NC NC

18B Black Platform Running Boards $228.00 $250.00

19S STX Appearance Package $1,670.00 $1,835.00

19SGRL Molded-In Color Black Honeycomb Style Grille Included Included

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

524 SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

53A Trailer Tow Package $1,206.00 $1,325.00

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver Included Included

582 Radio: AM/FM SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

595 Fog Lamps w/Black Bezels Included Included

642 Wheels: 20" 6-Spoke Machined-Aluminum $573.00 $630.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller Included Included

861DEC Box Side Decals Included Included

861FRB Body-Color Front & Rear Bumpers Included Included

924 Rear Window Fixed Privacy Glass w/Defroster Included Included

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 $2,329.00 $2,560.00

J Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats $269.00 $295.00

JB_01 (0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats NC NC

JS_01 (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic NC NC

LUMBAR Manual Driver/Passenger Lumbar Included Included

NNGV6 GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

POCKET Driver/Passenger Seat Back Pocket Included Included

T2P Tires: 275/60R20 BSW AT Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio $382.00 $420.00

$51,335.00 $53,970.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451670

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 3 of 6

116

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Paint Type:  decal

      Grille:  black w/body-colour surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - smart device only (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 4 of 6

117

Item IX. 3.



      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 5 of 6

118

Item IX. 3.



      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  manual driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      Interior Accents:  metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:39 PM Page 6 of 6

119

Item IX. 3.



Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department Date 08/29/2023

Harrington, Danny AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Ford Model F-150

Series XL 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 620358

$ 57,336.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 * Registration Fee

$ 0.00 Other:Courtesy Delivery Fee

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Steve Edenfield

Exterior Color (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior Color (0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/4

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 57,336.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 774.04 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 322.46 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 1,096.50 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 1,096.50 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 10,893.60 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham Sheriff's Department
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451623

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 1 of 6

County Manager August 29, 2023

120

Item IX. 3.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Custom Equipment C $ 3,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 3,000.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 3,000.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451623

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 2 of 6

121

Item IX. 3.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Ford F-150 XL 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5 ft. box 145 in. WB - US

Series ID: W1E

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $43,366 $45,410.00

Total Options $5,318.00 $5,845.00

Destination Charge $1,995.00 $1,995.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: JS-(0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic

Interior: JB-(0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

101A Equipment Group 101A Standard $-683.00 $-750.00

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD STD

153 Front License Plate Bracket NC NC

19S STX Appearance Package $1,670.00 $1,835.00

19SGRL Molded-In Color Black Honeycomb Style Grille Included Included

425 50 State Emissions STD STD

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic Included Included

524 SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

52X-1 Auto Start-Stop Removal $-46.00 $-50.00

53A Trailer Tow Package $1,206.00 $1,325.00

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver Included Included

582 Radio: AM/FM SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

595 Fog Lamps w/Black Bezels Included Included

642 Wheels: 20" 6-Spoke Machined-Aluminum $573.00 $630.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller Included Included

861DEC Box Side Decals Included Included

861FRB Body-Color Front & Rear Bumpers Included Included

924 Rear Window Fixed Privacy Glass w/Defroster Included Included

995 Engine: 5.0L V8 $2,329.00 $2,560.00

J Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats $269.00 $295.00

JB_01 (0 I) Black w/Unique Sport Cloth 40/Console/40 Front-Seats NC NC

JS_01 (0 P) Iconic Silver Metallic NC NC

LUMBAR Manual Driver/Passenger Lumbar Included Included

NNGV6 GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package Included Included

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

POCKET Driver/Passenger Seat Back Pocket Included Included

T2P Tires: 275/60R20 BSW AT Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

X27 3.31 Axle Ratio Included Included

$50,679.00 $53,250.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7451623

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 3 of 6

122

Item IX. 3.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with body-coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Paint Type:  decal

      Grille:  black w/body-colour surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Remote Engine Start:  remote start - smart device only (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Emergency SOS:  SYNC 4 911 Assist emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  Connected Navigation navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with locking box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Interior Concealed Storage:  interior concealed storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM with 360L AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  FordPass Connect 4G internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 4 of 6

123

Item IX. 3.



      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  Safety Canopy System curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  SecuriLock immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 5 of 6

124

Item IX. 3.



Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  manual driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      Interior Accents:  metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 5.0-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 08/29/2023 12:59:20 PM Page 6 of 6

125

Item IX. 3.



Staff Report 
 
Subject: Approval of Safety Discount Verification Forms. 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Director 
Department:  Human Resources and Risk Management  
Meeting Date:  September 19, 2023 
Item Description: Approval of Effingham County Board of Commissioners' participation 
in the Safety Discount Program. 
 
Summary Recommendation 
The County's Worker's Compensation and property and liability insurance are with the 
ACCG. Counties participating in the insurance programs are eligible for discounts on 
worker's compensation and property and liability insurance. The Safety Discount 
Verification Forms are required yearly to continue the discount program. 
 
Executive Summary 
Each year, ACCG offers a 7.5% discount on Worker's Compensation insurance and a 5% 
discount on our property and liability insurance to counties participating in the Safety 
Discount program. We must submit the required forms appointing an ACCG-GSIWCF 
Safety Coordinator and an ACCG-IRMA Safety Coordinator. The appointed Safety 
Coordinator must meet training requirements that have been completed and listed on the 
attached documents. The forms must be turned in no later than the end of September 
and signed by the County Chairman. 
 
Alternatives 

1. Recommend approval of the Safety Discount Forms to receive the insurance 
discounts. 

 
2. Do not ratify the approval or participate in the insurance discount program with 

ACCG. 
 
Other Alternatives:  None 
 
Recommendation: Alternative 1 
 
Department Review:  Human Resources 
 
Funding Source:  Additional funds are not required. 
 
Attachments: ACCG-IRMA Safety Discount Verification Form 
     ACCG-GSIWCF Safety Discount Verification Form 

126

Item IX. 4.



127

Item IX. 4.



128

Item IX. 4.



Subject:  Rezoning (Second District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 19, 2023 
Item Description: T&T Exley Properties requests to rezone 1,051 acres from PD-MU to PD-
MU, to allow for the amendment of a Planned Development. Located off of Highway 21. [Map# 
466D Parcels# 1,6,9,11] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 
1,051acres from PD-MU to PD-MU, to allow for the amendment of a Planned Development, with 
conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 The request for rezoning to the PD-MU zoning district is found in Appendix C, Article V-Uses 

Permitted in Districts, Section 15.  

 The original PD-MU document, approved in 2008, designates multi-family housing to serve 

as a transition between industrial and residential use and provide diversity of housing to the 

County. The multi-family portion included the following details: 

o Up to 1,350 units 

o A 30’ buffer, 15’ to be vegetative, between multi-family and surrounding residential 

properties. 

 The applicant proposes to amend the PD document to: 

o Remove the multi-family component completely. 

 To be replaced with an additional +/- 2,000,000 square feet of industrial 

development, shown to be spread across 3 warehouses equaling 

approximately 1,000,000 square feet. 

o Account for the 24.5 acres in use as a Verizon tower site. This is designated as 

“Highway Commercial/Industrial” 

 The requested amendment of the PD document will increase buffering between development 

and neighboring residential use, as well as decrease traffic trips per day by an approximate 

50% (10,160 for 1350 multi-family uses, 5,000 for warehouse use). 

 The change to the PD document was submitted for a DRI which was completed on May 10, 

2023. Comments on the project were from City of Savannah: “Effingham County should 

coordinate with City of Savannah since it does utilize City of Savannah water through a 

municipal water supply agreement” 

 On June 8, 2023, a town hall type meeting was held with the intent to inform surrounding 

property owners of current approval/proposed changes. The consensus presented by the 

public indicated that warehousing would be preferable to multi-family housing. The following 

were some of the concerns raised by residents with regards to adjacent industrial use: 

o Light/noise pollution 

o Burden to roads 

o Proximity of development to property lines 

o Appearance from residential properties 

o Destruction of natural habitat 

o The potential for a future rail spur 

129

Item X. 1.



 In response to these concerns, Staff is recommending additional conditions to approval.  

 Residents spoke to reiterate concerns at the June 13, 2023 Planning Board meeting.  

  At the June 13, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve, 
with the following conditions: 

o No rail spur shall be permitted.  

o Any planned trailer storage as a use must be approved as a conditional use.  

o Berms used to buffer from neighboring residential properties shall be a minimum of 25’ 

high.  

  And the additional stipulations that:  

o The berm be constructed in a manner that it hides structures from line of sight of adjacent 

residential properties.  

o The minimum buffer shall be 115’  

 The motion was seconded by Brad Smith, and carried 4-0, Ryan Thompson having recused 

himself from this item.  

 At the July 18, 2023 Board of Commissioners, the applicant made a request to table the 

hearing to allow time to produce a “more refined” sketch plan. 

 Commissioner Roger Burdette made a motion to table the item until the August 15, 2023 

Board of Commissioners meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jamie DeLoach, and carried unanimously. 

 At the August 15, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting, Commissioner Roger Burdette 

made a motion to table until the September 19, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jamie DeLoach, and carried unanimously. 

 The applicant has met with Staff and submitted an amended PD document which addresses 

and/or exceeds all previous conditions suggested by Staff. In addition, the applicant has also 

submitted to address buffering to include: 

o A 150’ buffer between Exley North parcels and adjacent residential properties to 

be constructed as follows: 

 35’ undisturbed buffer against residential property lines in question 

 10’ reserved for  

 Installation of drainage, fencing, and berm 

 Necessary and reasonable access to construct and perform 

maintenance and repair on the above listed 

 115’ of a 25’ high (minimum) landscaped and irrigated berm 

o Berms shall begin construction in tangent with correlating LDA activity and be 

completed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for their 

corresponding building. 

 Buildings 450’ or greater from the residential property lines requiring berms 

shall be exempt from berm requirements.  

 
 
 

130

Item X. 1.



Alternatives 
1. Approve the request to rezone 1,051 acres from PD-MU to PD-MU. 

 

2. Deny the request to rezone 1,051 acres from PD-MU to PD-MU.  

 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5.Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

 

131

Item X. 1.



132

Item X. 1.



133

Item X. 1.



134

Item X. 1.



135

Item X. 1.



136

Item X. 1.



137

Item X. 1.



138

Item X. 1.



139

Item X. 1.



140

Item X. 1.



141

Item X. 1.



142

Item X. 1.



143

Item X. 1.



144

Item X. 1.



145

Item X. 1.



146

Item X. 1.



147

Item X. 1.



148

Item X. 1.



149

Item X. 1.



150

Item X. 1.



151

Item X. 1.



152

Item X. 1.



153

Item X. 1.



154

Item X. 1.



155

Item X. 1.



156

Item X. 1.



157

Item X. 1.



158

Item X. 1.



159

Item X. 1.



160

Item X. 1.



161

Item X. 1.



162

Item X. 1.



163

Item X. 1.



164

Item X. 1.



165

Item X. 1.



166

Item X. 1.



167

Item X. 1.



168

Item X. 1.



169

Item X. 1.



170

Item X. 1.



171

Item X. 1.



172

Item X. 1.



173

Item X. 1.



174

Item X. 1.



175

Item X. 1.



176

Item X. 2.



177

Item X. 2.



178

Item X. 2.



179

Item X. 2.



180

Item X. 2.



181

Item X. 2.



182

Item X. 2.



183

Item X. 2.



184

Item X. 2.



185

Item X. 2.



186

Item X. 2.



187

Item X. 2.



188

Item X. 2.



189

Item X. 2.



190

Item X. 2.



191

Item X. 2.



192

Item X. 2.



193

Item X. 2.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

466D-1,6,9,11 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

466D-1,6,9,11 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, T&T EXLEY PROPERTIES has filed an application to rezone one thousand fifty-one 1,051 +/- acres; from PD-

MU to PD-MU to allow for the amendment of a Planned Development; map and parcel number 466D-1,6,9,11, located in the 2nd 

commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on July 18, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the Effingham 

County Herald on June 21, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on May 17, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT one thousand fifty-one 1,051 +/-  acres; map and parcel number 466D-1,6,9,11, located 

in the 2nd commissioner district is rezoned from PD-MU to PD-MU. 

 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

194

Item X. 2.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (First District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023 
Item Description: Warren M. Kennedy requests to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3, to 
allow for a storage facility. Located at 195 Elm Street. [Map# 302 Parcel# 167] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 1.13 
acres from R-2 to B-3, to allow for a storage facility, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or 

Text, Section 9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in 

Districts.  

 The applicant proposes to develop an outdoor storage facility for boats, RVs, and similar 

large items. 

 Commercial parking is a conditional use in the B-2 zoning district, automotive storage is 

permitted in B-3. 

 This parcel is adjacent to B-3 and vacant AR-1 parcels. 

 The applicant has met with Staff and, upon successful rezoning, will submit development 

plans for review and approval prior to development. 

 The applicant must obtain, and keep in good standing, an Effingham County Occupational 

Tax Certificate.  

 At the July 11, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve. 

 The motion was seconded by Brad Smith, and carried unanimously. 

 At the August 1, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting, Commissioner Forrest Floyd made 

a motion to table the hearing of the item until the August 15, 2023 Board of Commissioners 

meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jamie DeLoach, and passed unanimously. 

 At the August 15, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting Commissioner Forrest Floyd made 

a motion to table the hearing of the item until the September 19, 2023 Board of 

Commissioners meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Roger Burdette, and passed unanimously. 

 Staff followed up with the applicant, who has agreed to stipulations regarding access, as 

listed in the conditions for Alternative 1 below. 

 
Alternatives 

1. Approve the request to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3, with the following conditions: 

1.Access via Elm Street shall be permitted only if the proposed development submitted 

at time of sketch plan and subsequent development stages is equal or comparable to 

outdoor storage, as submitted during the rezoning request. 

195

Item X. 3.



2. The applicant shall disclose the above limitation of access at such time as the property 

is sold, or ownership otherwise transferred. 

 

2. Deny the request to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3.  

 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat  5.Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

 

196

Item X. 3.



197

Item X. 3.



198

Item X. 3.



199

Item X. 3.



200

Item X. 3.



201

Item X. 3.



202

Item X. 3.



203

Item X. 3.



204

Item X. 3.



205

Item X. 3.



206

Item X. 3.



207

Item X. 3.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 19, 2023 
Item Description: Warren M. Kennedy requests to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3, to 
allow for a storage facility. Located at 195 Elm Street. [Map# 302 Parcel# 167] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 1.13 
acres from R-2 to B-3, to allow for a storage facility, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or 

Text, Section 9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in 

Districts.  

 The applicant proposes to develop an outdoor storage facility for boats, RVs, and similar 

large items. 

 Commercial parking is a conditional use in the B-2 zoning district, automotive storage is 

permitted in B-3. 

 This parcel is adjacent to B-3 and vacant AR-1 parcels. 

 The applicant has met with Staff and, upon successful rezoning, will submit development 

plans for review and approval prior to development. 

 The applicant must obtain, and keep in good standing, an Effingham County Occupational 

Tax Certificate.  

 At the July 11, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve. 

 The motion was seconded by Brad Smith, and carried unanimously. 

 At the August 1, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting, Commissioner Forrest Floyd made 

a motion to table the hearing of the item until the August 15, 2023 Board of Commissioners 

meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jamie DeLoach, and passed unanimously. 

 At the August 15, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting Commissioner Forrest Floyd made 

a motion to table the hearing of the item until the September 19, 2023 Board of 

Commissioners meeting. 

 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Roger Burdette, and passed unanimously. 

 Staff followed up with the applicant, who has agreed to stipulations regarding access, as 

listed in the conditions for Alternative 1 below. 

 
Alternatives 

1. Approve the request to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3, with the following conditions: 

1.Access via Elm Street shall be permitted only if the proposed development submitted 

at time of sketch plan and subsequent development stages is equal or comparable to 

outdoor storage, as submitted during the rezoning request. 

208

Item X. 4.



2. The applicant shall disclose the above limitation of access at such time as the property 

is sold, or ownership otherwise transferred. 

 

2. Deny the request to rezone 1.13 acres from R-2 to B-3.  

 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 
 

209

Item X. 4.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

302-167 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

302-167 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, WARREN M. KENNEDY has filed an application to rezone one and thirteen hundredths (1.13) +/- acres; from 

R-2 to B-3 to allow for a storage facility; map and parcel number 302-167, located in the 1st commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the Effingham 

County Herald on July 5, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on June 28, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT one and thirteenth hundredths (1.13) +/- acres; map and parcel number 302-167, located 

in the 1st commissioner district is rezoned from R-2 to B-3, with the following conditions: 

1. Access via Elm Street shall be permitted only if the proposed development submitted at time of sketch plan and 

subsequent development stages is equal or comparable to outdoor storage, as submitted during the rezoning request. 

2. The applicant shall disclose the above limitation of access at such time as the property is sold, or ownership otherwise 

transferred. 

 

 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

210

Item X. 4.



   

 

 

 

Staff Report 

 
Subject:       NAACP Resolution 

Author:       Stephanie D. Johnson 

Department:     Administration (Clerk’s office) 

Meeting Date:   September 19, 2023 

Item Description: Consideration to approve a Resolution for the NAACP    

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: The NAACP was founded in February 12, 1909.  The 

Effingham Branch received its charter on November 3, 1968. A celebration Gala will be 

held Saturday, September 30, 2023 beginning with program to begin at 6:00 pm. This 

event will be held at the Guyton Civic Center. The speaker for this event will be Mayor Van 

Johnson of the City of Savannah. 
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider:  

1. To approve Resolution # 023-022 for the NAACP. 
2. To not approve the resolution.  

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: N/A 
 

Department Review: Administration 
 

Funding Source: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

1. Resolution 

2. Gala Flyer 

 

211

Item XI. 1.



 
R E S O L U T I O N 

 
FROM THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA  

 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the National Association for the Advancement of the Colored 

People (NAACP), founded February 12, 1909, established its mission as to "ensure the 

political, educational, social, and economic equality of the rights of all persons and to 

eliminate race-based discrimination." 

 
WHEREAS, following in the tradition of its national mission, the Effingham County 

Branch of the NAACP received its charter as an official chapter on November 3, 1968, 

nearly fifty years ago. 

 
WHEREAS, the distinguished President of the Savannah Branch of the NAACP, W.W. 

Law, presented this charter to the four original officers of the Effingham County Branch 

of the NAACP: Reverend Thomas Kent, President; Homer Wallace, Vice president; Ruth 

Griffin, Secretary; and Lynwood Griffin, Treasurer, on November 3, 1968. 

 
WHEREAS, over the course of its more than fifty-year history, the Effingham County 

Branch of the NAACP has continued to maintain its mission under the leadership of its 

five Presidents: Reverend Thomas Kent, Homer Wallace, Juanita Woods, Leroy Lloyd 

and its current President, Reverend Delmons White. 

 
WHEREAS, on September 30, 2023, the Effingham County Branch of the NAACP will 

celebrate another year at the Freedom Fund Gala at the Guyton Civic center. The theme 

of this Gala is "And the Dream Lives On.” 

 
WHEREAS, the Effingham County Branch of the NAACP continues to exhibit a strong 

sphere of influence in the extended Effingham County community as it strives to 

"ensure the political, educational, social, and economic rights of all persons" with its 

ultimate goal "the elimination of race-based discrimination." 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, we the sitting Commissioners of Effingham County recognizes this 

milestone and celebrate the history of the Effingham County Branch of the NAACP 

 
Humbly submitted this 19th day of September, in the year of our Lord two thousand and 
twenty-three 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
WESLEY M. CORBITT, Chairman-at-Large 
 

212

Item XI. 1.



213

Item XI. 1.



   

 

 

 

Staff Report 

 
Subject:       Resolution for Ms. Florrie Bell White – 100th birthday 

Author:       Stephanie D. Johnson 

Department:     Administration (Clerk’s office) 

Meeting Date:   September 19, 2023 

Item Description: Consideration to approve a Resolution celebration Ms. Florrie Bell 

White’s 100th birthday    

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: It is the privilege of the board and staff to honor and 

celebrate accomplishments and landmark events related to our citizenry. It is the practice 

of the Board of Commissioners to record these occasions via resolution or proclamation.  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider:  

1. To approve Resolution # 023-024 celebrating Ms. Florrie Bell White’s 100th birthday 
2. To not approve the resolution.  

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: N/A 
 

Department Review: Administration 
 

Funding Source: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

1. Resolution 

 

214

Item XI. 2.



 

 

R e s o l u t I o n 

   
RECOGNITION OF  

MS. FLORRIE BELL WHITE 

100TH BIRTHDAY CELEBRATION 
 

  

WHEREAS, Ms. Florrie Bell White was born on September 22, 1923 in Effingham County to 

Evans and Emma Jean Frazier along with other children and;  
  

WHEREAS, she is one of two survivors of her siblings and has three deceased children, however 

she enjoys 7 grandchildren and more than a few great grandchildren and she supplementary 

aided in nurturing countless children throughout Effingham County and; 
 

WHEREAS, Ms. White is a member of Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church in Guyton, where 

years ago she took her place as a Spiritual Leader and was titled as Missionary.  Other 

memberships of notable mention include the Queen of the East #126, Herons of Jericho and; 

 

WHEREAS, Ms. White was a domestic worker which was most common in her background era.  

She was also very active in the Seniors Citizen program and;  
  

WHEREAS, Ms. White is a pillar in the community and at the tender age of 100 years old yet 

maintains her both her physical and mental facilities and continues to provide wisdom and 

knowledge to all who know and love her.  This resolution is a symbol to celebrate her long life 

and legacy. We are told the journey though at times have been extremely challenging, she yet 

remains standing and; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County, 

Georgia joins Ms. White’s family and friends in celebrating her 100th birthday.  
  

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, a copy of this resolution will become part of the Effingham 

County archives.  
  

Humbly submitted this 19th day of September, in the Year of our Lord, 2023.  
 
 

____________________   ____________________   ____________________  
 Wesley Corbitt - Chairman        Forrest Floyd - 1st District              Roger Burdette - 2nd District  

 ______________________  ______________________   ______________________  
Jamie Deloach - 3rd District                 Reginald Loper - 4th District      Phil Kieffer - 5th District  

  
       

  

215

Item XI. 2.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Final Plat Approval (First District) 
Author:  Chelsie Fernald, Planner II 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 19, 2023 
Item Description: Mark Glisson, for BGN Investments, LLC, requests approval of the final plat 
and infrastructure agreement for Covered Bridge Phase 3. Map #352 Parcel# 37  
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the plat, and inspected the roads and drainage infrastructure identified in the 
warranty deed, and recommend approval.  
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 BGN Investments, LLC contractors have built roads and drainage infrastructure for phase 3 

of Covered Bridge in order to sell the 44 lots in this R-1 subdivision.  

 Water & Sewer service will be provided by Effingham County.  

 EOM inspected all roads, right-of-ways, and drainage infrastructure that is being dedicated 

to the county and they recommend approval.  

 Development Services Staff reviewed the Final Plat and Final Plat Checklist. All documents 

are in order, and consistent with zoning, plans, and plats previously approved. 

 The bond recommendation has been reviewed and approved by EOM. $25,464.80 is 10% of 

the total cost of construction for this phase.  

 The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the warranty deed and infrastructure 

agreement.    

Alternatives  
1. Approve the final plat and infrastructure agreement for Covered Bridge Phase 3, and accept 

the roads and drainage infrastructure identified in the warranty deed. 

2. Take no action 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services, County Attorney  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1. Final Plat for Covered Bridge Ph. 3  

2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist 
3. Warrant Deed  
4. Bond  
5. Infrastructure Agreement  

   

 

216

Item XI. 3.



217

Item XI. 3.



218

Item XI. 3.



219

Item XI. 3.



220

Item XI. 3.



221

Item XI. 3.



222

Item XI. 3.



223

Item XI. 3.



224

Item XI. 3.



225

Item XI. 3.



226

Item XI. 3.



227

Item XI. 3.



EXHIBIT “A” 

NOTICE OF CALL OF ELECTION 

TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

1. Notice is hereby given by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County (the 

“Board of Commissioners”), the governing body of Effingham County (the “County”), and by the 

Effingham County Board of Elections and Registration (the “Election Superintendent”), that on 

the 7th day of November, 2023, an election will be held at the regular county polling places in all 

the election districts of Effingham County, Georgia (the “County”).  At the Election, there will be 

submitted to the qualified voters of the County for their determination the following question: 

ONE PERCENT TSPLOST 

“( ) Yes.  

Shall a special one percent sales and use tax be imposed in the special district of                    

Effingham County for a period of time of five years and for the raising of an 

estimated amount of $120,000,000.00 (One Hundred Twenty Million Dollars) for 

funding transportation purposes for Effingham County, the City of Guyton, the City 

of Rincon, and the City of Springfield?   

If imposition of the tax is approved by the voters, such vote shall also constitute 

approval of the issuance of general obligation debt of Effingham County in the 

principal amount of $60,000,000.00 (Sixty Million Dollars) for the above purposes. 

  ( ) No.”  

 

2. All qualified voters desiring to vote in favor of the question propounded shall vote 

“Yes” and all qualified voters desiring to vote in opposition of the question propounded shall vote 

“No.” 

3. General obligation debt, if authorized, shall be general obligation debt of the 

Effingham County and shall be issued in the maximum aggregate principal amount of 

$60,000,000.00. The maximum rate or rates of interest on such debt shall not exceed five percent 

(5.00%) per annum. The maximum amount of principal to be paid in each year during the life of 

the debt shall be as follows:  

 

Year 

Principal Amount 

Maturing 

2024 $10,450,000.00  

2025 $11,485,000.00  

2026 $12,070,000.00 

2027 $12,675,000.00 

2028 $13,320,000.00 

228

Item XI. 4.



 The aggregate principal amount of general obligation debt which may be issued shall not 

exceed $60,000,000.00. The County may issue aggregate general obligation debt which is less than 

$60,000,000.00 and reduce the principal amounts maturing which are shown above. 

 

 To the extent available, the County may combine available funds from the State of Georgia 

with proceeds from the general obligation debt and proceeds received directly from the Sales and 

Use tax, and any other available funds, to pay the costs of the transportation projects. Plans and 

specifications for these projects have not been completed and bids have not been received. 

Depending upon acquisition and construction costs and available funds, the County may choose 

which capital outlay projects to undertake or not undertake, or to delay until additional funding is 

available, to the extent that proceeds of the general obligation debt and Sales and Use tax proceeds 

together with other available funds actually received by the County, are insufficient to complete 

any of the projects.  Such general obligation debt shall be payable from the proceeds of the Sales 

and Use tax and from an ad valorem tax to be levied within the County. 

 

 4. Reference is hereby made to O.C.G.A. § 36-82-1(d), which provides in part that 

any brochures, listings, or other advertisements issued by the Board of Commissioners or by any 

other person, firm, corporation or association with the knowledge and consent of the Board of 

Commissioners shall be deemed to be a statement of intention of the Board of Commissioners 

concerning the use of bond funds. 

 5. The last day to register to vote in the election is Tuesday, October 10, 2023. 

Anyone desiring to register may do so by applying in person at the voter registration office located 

at the 284 GA Highway 119S, Springfield, Georgia, 31329, or by any other method authorized by 

the Georgia Election Code.  

 6. The election will be held on Tuesday, November 7, 2023. The polls will be open 

from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m.  

 7. The initial publication of this notice in the legal organ of the County shall constitute 

the call of the election, and subsequent publications shall serve as additional notice of said election 

as may be required by the laws of the State of Georgia. 

 This ___ of September, 2023. 

              

Election Superintendent of the Effingham County 

Board of Elections and Registration 

 

229

Item XI. 4.



RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE CALLING OF AN ELECTION TO IMPOSE A 

COUNTY ONE PERCENT TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION 

SALES AND USE TAX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY, 

GEORGIA AUTHORIZING THE CALLING OF AN ELECTION TO IMPOSE A SINGLE-

COUNTY ONE PERCENT TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION 

SALES AND USE TAX AS AUTHORIZED BY O.C.G.A. § 48-8-260, ET SEQ.; SPECIFYING 

THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE PROCEEDS OF SUCH TAX ARE TO BE USED; 

SPECIFYING THE MAXIMUM PERIOD OF TIME FOR WHICH SUCH TAX SHALL BE 

IMPOSED; SPECIFYING THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE TRANSPORTATION 

PURPOSES TO BE FUNDED FROM THE PROCEEDS OF SUCH TAX; SEEKING 

APPROVAL TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT; REQUESTING THE BOARD OF 

ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATION OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY TO CALL AN ELECTION 

OF THE VOTERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY TO APPROVE THE IMPOSITION OF SUCH 

SALES AND USE TAX; APPROVING THE FORM OF BALLOT TO BE USED IN SUCH AN 

ELECTION; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  

 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-8-260, et seq. (the “Act”) authorizes the imposition of a county one 

percent transportation special purpose local option sales and use tax (the “Sales and Use Tax” or 

“TSPLOST”) for transportation purposes, including those set forth herein; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County, Georgia (the “Board of 

Commissioners”) has determined that it is in the best interest of the citizens of Effingham County, 

Georgia (the “County”) that the Sales and Use Tax be imposed in a special district comprising the 

County to raise approximately $120,000,000.00 (One Hundred Twenty Million Dollars) (after 

deduction of collection fees by the State of Georgia Department of Revenue) for the funding of 

certain transportation purposes (the “Purposes”); and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners delivered a written notice (the “Notice”) to the mayor 

in each municipality located within the County regarding the imposition of the TSPLOST; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice contained the date, time, place, and purpose of a meeting at which 

designated representatives of the County and the City of Guyton, the City of Rincon, and the City 

of Springfield (the “Municipalities”) met and discussed the possible projects for inclusion in the 

referendum, including municipally owned and operated projects; and  

WHEREAS, the Notice was delivered or mailed at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting, 

and the meeting was held at least 30 days prior to the issuance of a call for the referendum; and   

WHEREAS, the County has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Guyton, 

City of Rincon, and City of Springfield with respect to the division of the Sales and Use Tax (the 

“Agreement”); and 

230

Item XI. 4.



WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires that the Board of Elections and Registration of 

Effingham County (the “Election Board”) call the Election and further desires that the Election 

Board be furnished with a certified copy of this Resolution in connection with such request.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County, 

Georgia as follows:  

A. Assuming the question of imposing the Sales and Use Tax is approved by the voters of the 

special district in the Election, the Sales and Use Tax shall be imposed for the term, purposes 

and costs as follows:  

1. In order to finance the Purposes described herein, a Sales and Use Tax in the amount of one 

percent (1%) on all sales and uses in the special district of the County is hereby authorized to be 

levied and collected within the special district created in the County as provided in the Act.  

2. The proceeds of such tax are to be used to fund the Purposes. The Purposes consist of “County 

Projects” and “Municipal Projects.”  The County Projects, the Municipal Projects, and the 

estimated Costs are set forth below:  

 County Projects       Estimated Costs 

TSPLOST 2023 Unincorporated Projects 

District 1: 

Blue Jay Rd Resurfacing $1,300,000 

Old River Rd Resurfacing $2,000,000 

Meldrim Neighborhood Resurfacing $1,750,000 

Auriga Farms 

Neighborhood Resurfacing $1,200,000 

Central Ave Resurfacing $1,300,000 

Conaway Rd Resurfacing $175,000 

Holly Dr Resurfacing $100,000 

Honey Ridge Rd Resurfacing $900,000 

Pine St Resurfacing $200,000 

Red Bud Rd Resurfacing $75,000 

Roebling Rd Resurfacing $800,000 

S Laurel Cir Resurfacing $175,000 

Stagecoach Ave Resurfacing $150,000 

Wesley Dr Resurfacing $75,000 

Zeigler Rd Resurfacing $725,000 

Zittrouer Rd Resurfacing $1,000,000 

Midland Rd Resurfacing $300,000 

Lowground Rd Resurfacing $2,500,000 

SR 30/SR 17 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

231

Item XI. 4.



SR 17/Midland Rd 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

Sandhill Rd/Wesley Dr 

Intersection 

Improvement $600,000 

Treutlen Trail Bike & Pedestrian Trail $450,000  

Other Resurfacing Resurfacing $1,000,000  

Total   $19,375,000 

 

District 2: 

McCall Rd Resurfacing $4,000,000 

Blue Jay Rd Resurfacing $2,800,000 

Goshen Hills Neighborhood Resurfacing $1,500,000 

Westwood Heights 

Neighborhood Resurfacing $2,500,000 

Crystal Dr Resurfacing $250,000 

Golden Dr Resurfacing $325,000 

Zipperer Rd Resurfacing $475,000 

Herbert Kessler Rd Resurfacing $300,000 

Pittman Dr Resurfacing $100,000 

Pine Dr Resurfacing $150,000 

Midland Rd Resurfacing $600,000 

Blue Jay Rd/McCall Rd 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

Hodgeville Rd/Gateway 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

Blandford Rd/McCall Rd 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

Other Resurfacing Resurfacing $1,004,000 

Total   $17,904,000 

 

District 3: 

Stillwell-Clyo Rd Resurfacing $2,200,000 

Fourth St Resurfacing $400,000 

Hunters Chase Neighborhood Resurfacing $500,000 

Lower Ferry Rd Resurfacing $600,000 

Old Dixie Hwy S Resurfacing $1,000,000 

Old Louisville Rd Resurfacing $2,100,000 

Springfield-Egypt Rd Resurfacing $3,000,000 

Union Springs Road Resurfacing $1,300,000 

Berryville Rd Resurfacing $850,000 

Cypress Point Rd Resurfacing $450,000 

232

Item XI. 4.



Tuckasee King Rd Resurfacing $275,000 

Wallace Dr Resurfacing $375,000 

Pitts Rd Resurfacing $775,000 

Linton Ln Resurfacing $200,000 

Chester Thomas Rd Resurfacing $1,600,000 

Courthouse Rd/Little McCall 

Rd 

Intersection 

Improvement $650,000 

Treutlen Trail Bike & Pedestrian Trail $450,000 

Other Resurfacing Resurfacing $1,005,000 

Total   $17,730,000 

 

District 4: 

Anza Ln Resurfacing $125,000  

Aqueduct Dr Resurfacing $100,000  

Benjamin-Gnann Rd Resurfacing $1,200,000  

Courthouse Rd Resurfacing $900,000  

Saratoga Dr Resurfacing $100,000  

McCall Rd Resurfacing $3,300,000  

Blue Jay Rd Resurfacing $850,000  

Rahn Station Rd Resurfacing $2,000,000  

Stillwell-Clyo Rd Resurfacing $2,000,000  

Greystone Neighborhood Resurfacing $850,000  

Forest Hills Neighborhood Resurfacing $950,000  

Lowground Rd Resurfacing $2,500,000  

Little McCall/McCall/Rahn 

Station 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,300,000 

SR21/McCall (Springfield) 

Intersection 

Improvement $600,000 

Treutlen Trail Bike & Pedestrian Trail 450,000 

Other Resurfacing Resurfacing $1,004,000 

Total   $18,229,000  

 

District 5: 

Hickory Knob 

Neighborhood Resurfacing $1,400,000 

Barney Rd Resurfacing $150,000 

Chimney Rd Resurfacing $900,000 

Nellie Rd Resurfacing $400,000 

Woodland Dr Resurfacing $200,000 

Old Augusta/General 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,000,000 

233

Item XI. 4.



Old Augusta/Estes 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,000,000 

Old Augusta/Logistics 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,000,000 

Old Augusta/Cowan 

North 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,000,000 

Old Augusta/Chimney Rd 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,000,000 

SR 21/Goshen Ext 

Intersection 

Improvement $1,400,000 

SR21/Commerce 

Intersection 

Improvement $300,000 

Old Augusta Rd Widening $3,000,000 

East West Corridor New Road $3,500,000 

Other Resurfacing Resurfacing $1,004,000 

Total   $17,254,000 

 

 

Unincorporated County Totals: 

District 1 $19,375,000 

District 2 $17,904,000 

District 3 $17,730,000 

District 4 $18,229,000 

District 5 $17,254,000 

Total $90,492,000 

 

 

Municipal Projects        

City of Guyton  -  See attached Exhibit “B” which is incorporated herein. 

City of Rincon -  See attached Exhibit “C” which is incorporated herein. 

City of Springfield -  See attached Exhibit “D” which is incorporated herein. 

 

3. The Sales and Use Tax is to be imposed for a period of five (5) years.  

 

 

 

234

Item XI. 4.



B. General Obligation Debt.   

1.  The County is hereby authorized to issue general obligation debt (the “Debt”), secured by the 

proceeds of the TSPLOST, in a maximum aggregate principal amount of $60,000,000.00.  The 

proceeds of the Debt, if issued, shall be used to pay a portion of the costs of the County Projects, 

the Municipal Projects, and the costs of issuing the Debt.  The Debt shall bear interest from the 

first day of the first month during which the Debt is to issued or from such other date as may be 

designated by the County prior to the issuance of the Debt, at a rate(s) to be determined in a bond 

resolution to be adopted by the County prior to the issuance of the debt, which rate shall not exceed 

5.00% per annum.  The maximum amount of principal to be paid in each year during the life of 

the Debt shall be as follows: 

Year       Amount  

2024       $10,450,000.00 

2025       $11,485,000.00 

2026       $12,070,000.00 

2027       $12,675,000.00 

2028       $13,320,000.00 

 

2.  The proceeds of the Debt shall be deposited by the County in separate funds or accounts as 

specified in the Agreement. 

3.  The TSPLOST proceeds received in any year pursuant to the imposition of such tax, shall first 

be used for paying debt services requirements on the Debt for any such year before such proceeds 

are applied to any of the Projects authorized in Section A above.  Proceeds of the TSPLOST not 

required to be deposited in the separate fund in any year for the payment of principal and interest 

on the Debt coming due in the current year shall be deposited in a separate fund to be maintained 

by the County and applied toward funding the Projects to the extent such projects have not been 

funded with debt proceeds, all as more fully provided for in the Agreement. 

4.  Any brochures, listings, or other advertisements issued by the Board of Commissioners or by 

any other person, firm, corporation or association with the knowledge and consent of the Board of 

Commissioners, shall be deemed to be a statement of intention of the Board of Commissioners 

concerning the use of the proceeds of the Debt, and such statement of intention shall be binding 

upon the Board of Commissioners in the expenditure of such Debt or interest received from such 

Debt to the extent provided in Section 36-82-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.  

C. Call for the Election; Ballot Form; Notice.  

1. The election superintendent of Effingham County is hereby requested to call an election in all 

voting precincts in the County on the 7th day of November, 2023 for the purpose of submitting to 

the qualified voters of Effingham County the question set forth in paragraph 2 below.  The Election 

235

Item XI. 4.



Superintendent shall be furnished with a certified copy of the Resolution in connection with this 

request.  

  

2. The ballots to be used in the election shall have written or printed thereon substantially the 

following:  

ONE PERCENT TSPLOST 

“( ) Yes.  

Shall a special one percent sales and use tax be imposed in the special district of                    

Effingham County for a period of time of five years and for the raising of an 

estimated amount of $120,000,000.00 (One Hundred Twenty Million Dollars) for 

funding transportation purposes for Effingham County, the City of Guyton, the City 

of Rincon, and the City of Springfield?   

If imposition of the tax is approved by the voters, such vote shall also constitute 

approval of the issuance of general obligation debt of Effingham County in the 

principal amount of $60,000,000.00 (Sixty Million Dollars) for the above purposes. 

  ( ) No.”  

  

3. It is hereby requested that the election be held by the Election Superintendent of Effingham 

County in accordance with the election laws of the State of Georgia. It is hereby further requested 

that the Election Superintendent canvass the returns, declare the result of the election and certify 

the result to the Secretary of State and to the Commissioner of Revenue of the State of Georgia.  

4. The Election Superintendent of Effingham County is hereby authorized and requested to publish 

a notice of the election as required by law, in the newspaper in which Sheriffs advertisements for 

the County are published, one at least 30 days prior to the date of the election and then once a week 

for four weeks immediately preceding the date of the election.  The notice of the election shall be 

in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  

D. The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is hereby authorized and directed to deliver a copy 

of this resolution to the Election Superintendent of Effingham County, with a request that the 

Election Superintendent of Effingham County issue the call for an election.  

E. The proper officers and agents of the County are hereby authorized to take any and all further 

actions as may be required in connection with the imposition of the Sales and Use Tax.  

F. The Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  

 

 

236

Item XI. 4.



 SO RESOLVED, this     ___ day of September, 2023.  

   

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF       

 EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

       

By: _____________________________ 

 Wesley Corbitt 

Its: Chairman 

     

 

Attest: _____________________________ 

 Stephanie Johnson 

Its: County Clerk 

237

Item XI. 4.



238

Item XI. 4.



239

Item XI. 4.



240

Item XI. 4.



EXHIBIT B

241

Item XI. 4.



EXHIBIT C

242

Item XI. 4.



EXHIBIT D

243

Item XI. 4.



244

Item XI. 4.



245

Item XI. 4.



Staff Report 
 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Resolution of Surplus 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Various 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2023   

Item Description: Surplus 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Resolution 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 From time to time the County has broken, unused, damaged or extra inventory. In 
order for the county to properly dispose of these items they must be declared 
surplus in accordance with O.C.G.A § 36-9-2 which states that the county “…may, 
by order entered onto its minutes, direct the disposal of any real property which may 
be lawfully disposed of and make and execute good and sufficient title thereof on 
behalf of the County.”  

 This resolution consists of vehicles which have either been replaced or are no longer 
in use by the ECSO.  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Board’s approval of the Resolution of Surplus. 
2. Do not approve the Resolution of Surplus 
 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: Various 

 

Funding Source: NA 

 

Attachments:  

 Resolution of Surplus 
 

 

 

246

Item XI. 5.



Description Department Year Make Model
Serial Number / Identifying 

Number
Amount UOM

Vehicle ECSO 2016 Ford F150 1FTEW1CP0GFA18198 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Ford Explorer 1FM5K7D88JGA11602 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 Ford Interceptor Taurus 1FAHP2MK7FG151896 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 Ford Interceptor - Taurus 1FAHP2MK2FG102430 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2015 Ford F150 1FTEW1CP2FFB66707 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2016 Ford F-150 1FTEW1CP1GFA18128 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Ford F-150 1FTEW1E59JKE80446 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFT2LC381728 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFT4KC631744 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Ford Explorer 1FM5K8AB5LGA41987 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFTXLC442940 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFT1LC442941 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFT5LC442943 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFT7LC442944 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 DODGE Durango 1C4SDJFT5LC443106 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 DODGE Durango 1C4SDJFT9LC443108 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2016 Dodge Ram 1500 3C6RR6LT4GG293260 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT5JH143935 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT7JH143936 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT0JH143938 1 ea

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County Georgia, in regular session assembled on September 19, 2023 by this resolution declare the following described property 

surplus and authorize the public sale, or disposal thereof:

NOTICE OF SALE

247

Item XI. 5.



Vehicle ECSO 2019 Ford F-150 1FTEW1CB1KFB24284 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2017 Ford Expedition 1FMJU1HT5HEA84825 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 DODGE Ram 1500 1C6SRFFT1KN856648 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2016 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT4GH347568 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT9JH147647 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Charger  2C3CDXAT9KH567935 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Charger  2C3CDXAT9KH567936 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT9KH567937 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT5KH567939 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT9KH567942 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2020 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFTXLC368127 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Ford Explorer 1FM5K8AR3JGC18465 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2018 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT8JH278892 1 ea

Vehicle ECSO 2017 Ford F-150 1FTEX1C84HFC29394 1 ea

Vehicle FIRE 2019 Ford Expedition 1FMJU1FT2KEA03063 1 ea

This _______________ day of September, 2023

__________________________________________________

Effingham County Board of Commissioners ATTEST:

 

Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk

Pursuant to said resolution the above described surplus property will be demolished,  offered for sale by auction or by sealed bid;  will be traded for newer or alternate equipment or will be donated 

to non-profit. 

248

Item XI. 5.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order 2 for Task Order 23-REQ-007 with Hussey Gay Bell  

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Multiple 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2023 

Item Description: Change Order 2 for Task Order 23-REQ-007 with Hussey Gay Bell for the 

Clarence E. Morgan Gymnasium Expansion design and construction management 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends Approval of Change Order 2 for Task Order 

23-REQ-007 with Hussey Gay Bell for the Clarence E. Morgan Gymnasium Expansion design 

and construction management 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Staff sent an RFP to the IDC consultants in September requesting proposals to design 

an expansion to the CEM Gymnasium for an EEMA and Recreation offices. Nine firms 

were contacted and one submittal was received.  

o Hussey Gay Bell: $198,000.00 

 Hussey Gay Bell was the original architect/engineer for the design of the current CEM 

Gym. Staff has reviewed the proposal and recommends award. 

 Change Order 1 had been submitted for the addition of low voltage/data/IT design to the 

task order for HGB. This was not included in the original scope request or proposal. The 

cost for this addition is $9,000.00. Change Order 1 also included the $3,000 

reimbursable expenses total that was listed in HGB’s original proposal, but not included 

in the contract total. This was an oversight by staff in the original task order approval.   

 Change Order 2 has been requested for additional topographic surveying that needs to 

be completed. It was assumed there would be enough information from the original 

design plans, but that is not the case. The cost for CO2 is $2,500.00. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order 2 for Task Order 23-REQ-007 with Hussey Gay Bell for the 

Clarence E. Morgan Gymnasium Expansion in the amount of $2,500 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Project Manager, Purchasing, Finance 

Funding Source: SPLOST 

Attachments: Change Order 2 for Task Order 23-REQ-007  

 

 

249

Item XI. 6.



Change Order # 2

 
 

Project: Task Order 23-REQ-007 – CEM Expansion 

Contract Date: November 16, 2022 

Change Order Effective Date: September 19, 2023 

Change Order Issued to: Hussey, Gay, Bell & Deyoung International, Inc. 

    329 Commercial Drive, Suite 200 

    Savannah, GA 31406 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION Total 

1 Topographic Survey $2,500 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 TOTAL $2,500 

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 198,000.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 12,000.00 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 210,000.00 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 2,500.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 212,500.00 

 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Hussey, Gay, Bell & Deyoung International, Inc. 

804 S. Laurel Street     329 Commercial Drive, Suite 200 

Springfield, GA 31329     Savannah, GA 31406 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

250

Item XI. 6.



 

 

7 September 2023 
 
Mr. Tim Callanan, County Manager 
EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

804 S Laurel Street 
Springfield, GA  31329 
 

RE: CEM GYM ADDITION – ADDITIONAL TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY 

ADDITIONAL DESIGN SERVICES FEE PROPOSAL 
 
Dear Mr. Callanan: 
 
Hussey Gay Bell is pleased to present to you our additional design services fee proposal for additional 
topographic survey information.  Per our conversations, my civil engineer needs additional topo information 
for the gym site.  We assumed that with the original 2019 survey, the original 2019 civil design, and the 
Contractor's 2021 as-built survey, we would have enough info for the current site/civil design.  However, he 
needs a bit more info and he is asking for a minimal amount of topo shots surrounding the existing gym.  The 
fee for the additional survey is $2,500.00. 

 
I trust you will find this proposal acceptable, if so, please sign and date below.  If you have any questions, please 
give me a call.   
 
Sincerely, 
HUSSEY GAY BELL & DEYOUNG INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

 

Robert Armstrong, AIA 
 

Robert Armstrong, AIA 
Vice President 
 
cc: Thomas Keane 

File 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCEPTED BY          DATE 
 
 

251

Item XI. 6.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Proposal from CINTAS Agreement. 

Author: Sarah Mausolf, Director 

Department: Human Resources and Risk Management 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2023 

Item Description: Proposal from CINTAS to lease AED devices. 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff requests Proposal approval from CINTAS for a 12-

month agreement to lease AED devices for multiple county locations. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

The Human Resources and Risk Management Department is requesting 

approval to lease AED devices from CINTAS. Over the past year, multiple 

departments have requested AED devices at their locations as our population 

continues to increase. CINTAS will provide the maintenance and upkeep of the 

devices. They will perform monthly inspections and replace any equipment that 

may be used and deployed if needed. We will utilize our ACCG Safety Grant 

funding for this lease.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Proposal from CINTAS 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Purchasing, Human Resources, County 

Attorney 

Funding Source: ACCG Safety Grant 

Attachment: CINTAS Agreement 

 

 

 

252

Item XI. 7.



 

 

 

Company Name: _Effingham County____________________________________________________________             Phone:  _________________ 

Email:  ____________________________________________________________________________ Customer #:  ________________ 

Billing Address:  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Physical Address:  __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Cintas Corporation No. 2 d/b/a Cintas First Aid & Safety (“Cintas”) will provide the Customer the Automatic External Defibrillator(s) selected by Customer below (the “AED Devices”) 
and related products and services as specifically outlined in this agreement (“Agreement”). 

AED DEVICE CASE PRICE PER UNIT NUMBER OF UNITS MONTHLY PRICE 

Zoll 3 Cabinet/Pelican Case $ 110.35 /unit 6 $662.10 /month 

MEDICAL DIRECTION:          x LifeREADY™ 360             LifeREADY™ 

 

1. Parties and Acknowledgment. This Agreement is between Cintas and Customer (individually, “Party”; together, the “Parties”). By signing this Agreement, Customer acknowledges 
it has received the entire Agreement and has read and understands all terms and conditions, including terms and conditions listed on page two. Any other terms not specifically 
agreed upon by Cintas, in writing, are not binding on Cintas. 
2. Term; Renewal; Charges. This agreement is effective as of the date of execution for a term of 12 months with (2) additional 12-month renewal from the date of installation. This 
Agreement shall renew automatically for succeeding terms of 12 months (each a “Renewal Term”) unless Customer gives to Cintas written notice of the Customer’s intention not to 
renew at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the then-current term. Cintas shall charge Customer the above-referenced monthly price for use of the AED Device(s) and/or related 
services (“Monthly Service Charge”). If at the end of the 12 months, the customer is not able to receive additional funding beyond the additional 12 months, they would owe $680 
per unit.  Customer acknowledges, however, that Cintas’s costs may increase or other events may occur during the course of the Agreement warranting a price increase, and 
Cintas reserves the right to increase prices. If Cintas increases a price, Customer has the right to object in writing within 10 days of the notice of the increase. If Customer objects to 
the increase, Cintas has the right to terminate the Agreement. If Customer does not object, Customer is bound by the new prices. 3. Products. Cintas will provide for use by 
Customer the AED Device(s). With each AED Device, Cintas will also provide for use: one battery, one set of pads, one Prep and Response Kit, and either one AED wall cabinet or 
one Grab N’ Run Kit (together, including the AED Device, “Product”). (Additional batteries, sets of pads, data recording cards, and other accessories are not included in the 
definition of Product; such items may be purchased separately from Cintas.) 
4. Service. Cintas will deliver AED software updates when available and provide periodic service visits (at a minimum, once every six months) to check expiration dates of the 
battery and set of pads, to replace them if expired, and to confirm the status of the AED Device(s) through a visual inspection of the AED status indicator (“AED Services”). If 
Customer performs its own inspection and/or Customer identifies an expired battery or an expired set of pads, notes a fault of the AED status indicator, or identifies any other 
concern, Customer shall contact Cintas during normal business hours and Cintas will respond to Customer by the first business day following receipt of notice. 
5. Medical Direction. Customer acknowledges that it must obtain a prescription for the AED Device(s) and the AED Device(s) must be subject to medical oversight. Customer 
acknowledges that Cintas is not a health-care provider and does not issue the prescription, provide medical oversight, or provide other related health-care or medical services. 
Rather, by signing this Agreement, Customer receives access to a third-party, at no additional cost to Customer, who will provide a prescription for the AED Device(s), provide 
medical oversight, register the AED Device(s) with local EMS (together, “Medical Direction”), and provide Customer access to the third-party’s on-line software portal. As a condition 
to being granted Medical Direction and access to third-party’s software portal, Customer acknowledges it will be required to agree to the terms and conditions applicable to those 
services, which will be provided at the initial log in to the software portal. Failure to do so: (a) will relieve any third-party providing the services from any liability for AED management 
and (b) will result in Customer assuming full responsibility and any associated liabilities for failing to acknowledge the terms and conditions. 
6. Quality of Services. Cintas will deliver quality service at all times. Any complaints about the quality of Cintas’s service that are not resolved in the normal course of business must 
be sent by registered letter to Cintas’s General Manager at the local FAS service office. If Cintas then fails to resolve a material complaint in a reasonable period, Customer may 
terminate this Agreement provided AED Device(s) are returned in good working order or purchased at Replacement Cost. 
7. Scope and Limitations of Service. The scope of Cintas’s responsibilities under this Agreement is limited to delivering, performing AED Services and providing access to third-party 
Medical Direction, as outlined above. Customer acknowledges that the scope of services expressly excludes: performance of a risk or hazard analysis of any kind or type, providing 
regulatory guidance, or providing recommendations regarding the type, number, and placement or location of AED Device(s) at Customer’s facility. Customer further agrees that 
Cintas has no responsibility to monitor the condition of the AED Device(s) between Cintas’s periodic service visits. Customer bears sole responsibility for notifying Cintas of faults, 
alarms, or indications that an AED Device is not functioning properly in between Cintas’s periodic service visits. Should Customer so notify Cintas, Cintas will respond to Customer 
by the first business day following receipt of notice and will perform a service visit within a reasonable time thereafter to provide a visual inspection of the AED status indicator 
and/or provide a replacement AED Device. 
8. Ownership; Care of AED Products: Replacement, Repair & Maintenance. Cintas maintains all right, title, and ownership of the AED Device(s). Customer agrees it will not alter, 
repair, or otherwise make changes to the AED Products. Customer agrees to protect AED Device(s) and Product(s) from mishap and misuse. If an AED Device requires repair due 
to ordinary wear and tear, Cintas shall, at its sole discretion, either provide Customer with a replacement AED Device or send the AED Device for repair by the manufacturer at no 
charge to Customer. If Cintas, in its sole discretion, determines an AED Device must be repaired due to mishap or misuse that occurred while in Customer’s possession, Cintas may 
charge Customer for the time, materials, and shipping involved in the repair of the AED Device. In the event an AED Device is lost, stolen, or damaged beyond repair, Customer 
agrees to pay a replacement cost of $1,995 (“Replacement Cost”). If replacement is necessary and the AED Device is still subject to the Initial Term or a Renewal Term, the 
payment of the Replacement Cost does not release Customer of its obligations under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an AED Device must be replaced or repaired, 
Cintas, at its sole discretion, may elect to ship to Customer a replacement AED Device and have Customer ship back to Cintas the AED Device requiring repair or replacement 
(rather than Cintas physically delivering a replacement AED Device). Upon receipt of a replacement AED Device, Customer shall return to Cintas the original AED Device, postage 
prepaid by Cintas, with the Customer taking reasonable care to protect the AED Device during transit. If, at any time, Customer identifies any concern, including, but not limited to, 
an expired battery or set of pads, a fault on the AED Status Indicator, or any other alarm, fault or other notification that an AED Device is not functioning correctly, Customer shall 
contact Cintas during normal business hours and Cintas will respond to Customer by the first business day following receipt of notice. 
9. Replacement AED Device. Customer may choose to replace an existing AED Device (“Original AED”) with an AED Device of a different make or model (“Replacement AED”) at 
any time after the expiration of the Initial Term with no penalty or cancellation charges; Customer may return Original AED to Cintas or purchase Original AED for $399. If Customer 
chooses a Replacement AED, Customer must sign a new Service Agreement. 

BY SIGNING BELOW, CUSTOMER CERTIFIES THAT CUSTOMER HAS READ AND AGREED TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 
INCLUDING THOSE PRINTED ON THE SECOND AND THIRD PAGE. 

Customer Signature: _____________________________________________________ Date: _________________________ 

Customer Name: ______________________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 

Cintas Onsite AED Service Agreement, Page 1 of 3 
FAS POLICY #8724 (EXHIBIT A  - Adobe Sign)   A = FAS AAED Service Agreement  B = FAS AED Direct Sale  C = AED Location Form  D = AED Servicing  E = AED Order Form 

253

Item XI. 7.



 
10. Cancellation; Return of AED Device. Customer may cancel the Agreement at any time with a 30-day advance written notification. If cancellation is made during the Initial Term, 
Customer shall pay all remaining Monthly Service Charges owed through the end of the Initial Term and either shall return all AED Devices subject to this Agreement or purchase 
each AED Device for a cost of $399 per AED Device. If cancellation is made during a Renewal Term, Customer shall pay a cancellation fee of $150 each per AED Device and either 
shall return all AED Devices subject to this Agreement or purchase each AED Device for a cost of $399 per AED Device; the $150 cancellation fee(s), however, may be applied to the 
purchase price of the AED Device(s). At the end of the Agreement, Customer shall return the AED Products to Cintas in good working and physical condition, reasonable wear and 
tear expected, within 5 business days of the cancellation of this Agreement. 
11. Manufacturer Recalls. Customer acknowledges that, from time to time, an AED Product may be subject to a voluntary recall initiated by the manufacturer and/or an involuntary 
recall initiated by the United States Food and Drug Administration. Under either or both scenarios, Customer agrees to cooperate fully with Cintas regarding timely execution of any 
required recall procedures and to provide Cintas and/or its authorized representatives and agents with access to all of the Customer’s locations and facilities where recall-affected 
AED Products are or may be located. Customer agrees to permit Cintas and/or its authorized representatives and agents to collect any and all recall-affected AED Products and 
transport any and all such AED Products away from the Customer’s locations and facilities for destruction or other processing. Cintas may supply Customer with alternate AED 
Products having similar functions and characteristics to the recall-affected AED Products. 
12. TRAINING ACKNOWLEDGEMENT. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES ALL TRAINING COURSES ARE PROVIDED BY CINTAS FOR EDUCATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY AND MAY NOT BE RELIED UPON AS LEGAL ADVICE. THE INFORMATION PRESENTED IN ANY COURSE MAY NOT REFLECT THE MOST CURRENT 
LEGAL DEVELOPMENTS AND CINTAS DOES NOT PURPORT TO IMPLY OR GUARANTEE FULL COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE OR FEDERAL REGULATIONS. AN 
ATTORNEY SHOULD BE CONTACTED FOR ADVICE ON SPECIFIC LEGAL ISSUES. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES IT BEARS THE SOLE RISK OF LOSS 
FOR ANY LOSS, INJURY OR DAMAGES RESULTING FROM OR RELATED IN ANY WAY TO CUSTOMER OR PARTICIPANT’S COMPLIANCE OR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH 
LAWS OR REGULATIONS. CINTAS SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER OR ANY OTHER PERSON RELATING TO OR RESULTING FROM TRAINING SERVICES 
OR INFORMATION PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH TRAINING SERVICES OR ANY DECISIONS MADE BY CUSTOMER AS A RESULT OF THE TRAINING PROVIDED. 
13. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ALL AED PRODUCT PURCHASES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL 
BE SUBJECT TO THE WARRANTY PROVIDED BY THE MANUFACTURER OF THE AED PRODUCT AND NOT CINTAS. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CINTAS 
MAKES NO WARRANTY, REPRESENTATION, COVENANT OR GUARANTEE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF THE GOODS AND/OR 
SERVICES PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING (BUT NOT LIMITED TO) ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. NO MODIFICATION, WAIVER, OR AMENDMENT OF THIS DISCLAIMER SHALL BE DEEMED EFFECTIVE UNLESS MADE IN A WRITING DRAFTED BY CINTAS 
FOR THIS EXPRESS PURPOSE THAT IS (I) SIGNED BY CINTAS, (II) EXPLICITLY USES THE TERM “WARRANTY” IN ITS TITLE, (III) SPECIFICALLY REFERENCES THIS 
AGREEMENT; AND (IV) EXPLICITLY AND UNAMBIGUOUSLY DESCRIBES WHAT ADDITIONAL WARRANTY(IES) ARE BEING OFFERED TO CUSTOMER PURSUANT TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. CUSTOMER FURTHER AGREES THAT THIS EXPLICITLY EXCLUDES ANY OF CINTAS’S SALES MATERIALS, CIRCULARS, WEBSITES, OR OTHER 
ADVERTISING MATERIALS OF ANY TYPE FROM CREATING ANY WARRANTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND CUSTOMER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT IT 
IS NOT RELYING UPON ANY SUCH MATERIALS FOR THIS PURPOSE. 
14. LIMITATION OF CINTAS’S LIABILITY; LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Customer acknowledges that Cintas’s Monthly Service Charges are based on the value of services provided 
and the limited liability provided under this Agreement and not on the likelihood or potential extent or severity of injury (including death) to Customer or others. Customer further 
acknowledges and agrees that Cintas cannot predict the potential amount, extent, or severity of any damages or injuries that Customer or others may incur due to the failure of any 
AED Product or AED Service to work as intended. IF CINTAS OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES ARE HELD LIABLE FOR ANY REASON FOR ANY LOSS, INJURY, OR DAMAGES 
OF ANY KIND THAT ARISES OUT OF, RESULTS FROM, OR IS RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSSES, INJURIES OR DAMAGES 
RESULTING FROM CINTAS’S SOLE OR PARTIAL NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER ACTIVE OR PASSIVE), CUSTOMER AGREES AND WARRANTS THAT CINTAS’S AND ITS 
REPRESENTATIVES’ COLLECTIVE LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER, ITS AGENTS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, INVITEES, AND ANY THIRD PARTY SHALL BE 
TWENTY FIVE PERCENT (25%) OF CUSTOMERS SPEND AS TO AED SERVICES IN THE TWELVE MONTHS (12 MONTHS) IMMEDIATELY PRECEEDING THE DATE ON 
WHICH THE LIABILITY AROSE AS LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. If Customer wishes to increase the limitation of liability, Customer may, as of right, enter into a supplemental 
agreement with Cintas to obtain a higher limit by paying an additional amount consistent with the increase in liability. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT THE LIMITS ON THE LIABILITY 
OF CINTAS AND THE WAIVERS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE A FAIR ALLOCATION OF RISKS AND LIABILITIES BETWEEN CINTAS, CUSTOMER, AND ANY 
OTHER AFFECTED PARTIES. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT WERE CINTAS TO HAVE LIABILITY GREATER THAN THAT STATED ABOVE, IT 
WOULD NOT PROVIDE THE AED PRODUCTS AND AED SERVICES. Neither Party shall be liable to the other or any other person for any incidental, punitive, speculative, or 
consequential damages of any type, including, but not limited to, loss of profits or business opportunity; provided that the foregoing limitation shall not apply to indemnification for a 
third party claim pursuant to Section 17. 
15. Disputes. Any dispute or matter arising in connection with or relating to this Agreement other than an action for collection of fees due Cintas hereunder shall be resolved by 
binding and final arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to applicable Ohio arbitration law. EACH PARTY, ON BEHALF OF ITSELF AND ALL OF ITS INSURER(S), 
WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION BETWEEN CUSTOMER AND/OR INSURER AND CINTAS, AND CUSTOMER IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO CLASS 
REPRESENTATIVE CLAIMS (WHETHER AS A CLASS MEMBER OR CLASS REPRESENTATIVE) AND ANY RIGHT TO HAVE SUCH DISPUTE CONSOLIDATED OR 
CONSIDERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH ANY OTHER CLAIM OR CONTROVERSY OR AS A PART OF ANY OTHER PROCEEDING. The exclusive jurisdiction and forum for 
resolution of any such dispute shall lie in Warren County, Ohio. 
16. CINTAS NOT AN INSURER. Customer acknowledges and agrees that neither Cintas nor its Subcontractors or assignees are insurers and that no insurance coverage is 
provided by this Agreement. Customer acknowledges and agrees that neither Cintas nor its Representatives are insurers and that no insurance coverage is provided by this 
Agreement. Customer understands and agrees that it is Customer’s sole responsibility to obtain and maintain insurance coverage for costs, expenses, losses and damages, including 
related to the AED Devices. Customer releases and waives all rights of recovery against Cintas by way of subrogation. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT 
CINTAS ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR, NOR SHALL IT HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR, CLAIMS MADE AGAINST IT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE FAILURE 
OF AN AED DEVICE TO OPERATE EFFECTIVELY OR AS DESIGNED. 
17. RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF CINTAS BY CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER RELEASES AND AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS CINTAS 
AND ANY/ALL OF ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES OF ANY TYPE FROM LIABILITY FOR ANY AND ALL 
LOSS, DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND OR TYPE, UNDER ANY LEGAL, EQUITABLE OR OTHER THEORY, THAT MAY OCCUR PRIOR TO, CONTEMPORANEOUSLY 
WITH, OR AFTER THE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT RELATED IN ANY WAY TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT OR PERFORMANCE UNDER THE 
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING (BUT NOT LIMITED TO) THE IMPROPER OPERATION OR NON-OPERATION OF THE AED PRODUCT(S) OR AED SERVICE(S). THIS 
OBLIGATION INCLUDES (BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO) ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, LIABILITY, DAMAGE, JUDGMENT, LOSS, EXPENSES, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, AND COSTS, 
THAT MAY BE ASSERTED AGAINST OR INCURRED BY CINTAS OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES BY 
CUSTOMER OR ANY PERSON OR ENTITY NOT A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, CUSTOMER’S INSURANCE COMPANY, 
ADMINISTRATIVE BODY OR AUTHORITY, OR CUSTOMER’S EMPLOYEES) FOR ANY EXPENSE, LOSS, OR DAMAGE CAUSED BY OR CONTRIBUTED TO IN ANY WAY, 
OR ALLEGED TO BE CAUSED BY OR CONTRIBUTED TO IN ANY WAY, BY ANY ACT, OMISSION, OR FAULT OF CINTAS OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, 
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES. THIS OBLIGATION EXTENDS TO, WITHOUT LIMITATION, STATUTORY CIVIL DAMAGES, ECONOMIC 
DAMAGES, PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR PROPERTY DAMAGE (REAL AND PERSONAL) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING (BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO) ANY CLAIMS BASED UPON BREACH OF THE AGREEMENT, STRICT LIABILITY, REQUESTS FOR OR RIGHTS OF SUBROGATION OR CONTRIBUTION, 
INDEMNIFICATION, WRONGFUL DEATH, AND NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER ACTIVE OR PASSIVE, AND INCLUDING CLAIMS BASED UPON CINTAS’S SOLE, PARTIAL, OR 
JOINT AND SEVERAL NEGLIGENCE OF ANY TYPE OR DEGREE), AND ANY OTHER CLAIM, WHETHER BASED UPON OR ARISING UNDER CONTRACT, TORT, LAW, OR 
EQUITY. CUSTOMER FURTHER RELEASES AND WAIVES ANY RIGHT OF SUBROGATION THAT IT, ANY INSURER, OR ANY OTHER THIRD PARTY MAY HAVE DUE TO 
OR FOR ANY SUCH CLAIM, LOSS, OR DAMAGE. Cintas reserves the right to select counsel to represent it in any such action. 
18. LIMITATION OF ACTION. ANY ACTION BY CUSTOMER AGAINST CINTAS OR ANY SUBCONTRACTOR MUST BE COMMENCED WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE ACCRUAL 
OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION OR THE ACTION SHALL BE BARRED, REGARDLESS OF ANY OTHER STATUTE OF LIMITATION OR REPOSE THAT MAY APPLY TO THE 
CLAIM UNDER STATE OR FEDERAL LAW. 
19. Force Majeure. Cintas shall not be responsible or liable for failure to perform attributable to any cause or contingency beyond its reasonable control including, without limitation, 
act of God; act or omission of civil or military authority; fire; flood; tempest; epidemic; earthquake; volcanic activity, quarantine restriction; labor dispute (e.g. lockout, strike or work 
stoppage or slowdown); embargo; war; riot; unusually severe weather; accidents; political strife; act of terrorism; delay in transportation; compliance with any regulation or directive of 
any national, state, or local government, or any department or agency thereof; or any other cause which by the exercise of reasonable diligence Cintas is unable to overcome. 
20. Governing Law. To the greatest extent permitted by law, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio. 
21. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, section, or portion of a section of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision 
or section. 

Cintas Onsite AED Service Agreement, Page 2 of 3 

254

Item XI. 7.



22. Updated Terms and Conditions and Policies. Customer acknowledges and agrees Cintas may send copies of its various policies to Customer, including, but not limited to, 
amendments to these Terms and Conditions via e-mail or make them available via a web page or other similar mechanism and that these policies are incorporated and made part of 
this Agreement. Customer acknowledges and agrees its continued request for service pursuant to this Agreement and/or use and/or acceptance of the AED Products and AED 
Services constitute acceptance of any such updated Terms and Conditions. 
23. Notices. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement and specifically excluding a price increase under Section 2, any notice given pursuant to the Agreement shall be in writing 
and sent by certified mail or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested or by national overnight courier service, to the Customer at the address set forth in this 
Agreement, to Cintas at the nearest Cintas FAS service office, or at such other address as such Party may provide in writing to the other Party. Any such notice shall be effective 
upon the receipt thereof. 
24. Authority to Execute Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party that (i) the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement have been duly 
authorized by all necessary entity action(s), and (ii) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation as to it, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms. The person 
signing this Agreement on behalf of Customer expressly represents and warrants that he or she has all authority necessary to bind Customer to its terms. 
25. Assignment. This Agreement cannot be assigned by the Customer without the prior written consent of Cintas, which will not be unreasonably withheld. Cintas has the right to 
assign this Agreement. The Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
26. Entire Agreement; Modifications; Waiver. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all 
prior negotiations, agreements, and understandings with respect thereto, and any terms and conditions set forth in subsequent purchase orders or other documents issued by 
Customer, in which case, the terms of this Agreement shall control. No amendment to or modification of this Agreement is effective unless it is in writing and signed by each of 
Customer and Cintas. A waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement will not constitute or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
violation of that provision or as a waiver of any breach or violation of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

 

Cintas Onsite AED Service Agreement, Page 3 of 3 
Updated February 1, 2020 

255

Item XI. 7.



Staff Report 
 
Subject: Approval of Amendment to Administrative Services Agreement (ASA) with 
Meritain Health. 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Director 
Department:  Human Resources and Risk Management 
Meeting Date:  September 19, 2023 
Item Description: Request to approve an Amendment to our Administrative Services 
Agreement (ASA) with Meritain Health. 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving the Amendment to our ASA with Meritain Health, allowing 
us to receive a $3,000 Wellness Credit.  
 
Alternatives 

1. Recommend approval of Amendment to ASA with Meritain Health.  
2. Disapprove and provide staff with guidance on how to proceed. 

 
Other Alternatives: None 
 
Department Review: County Manager and Human Resources.  
 
Funding Source: No impact. 
 
Attachment:  Amendment to Administrative Services (ASA) with Meritain Health.  
                
    

256

Item XI. 8.



0123 – Effingham County Board of Commissioners – Amendment               Page 1 of 2 v020823 

AMENDMENT TO 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
This Amendment to the Administrative Services Agreement (this “Amendment”) dated as of January 01, 2023 
(the “Amendment Effective Date”) amends the Administrative Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) entered 
into as of January 01, 2021, as amended, by and between Meritain Health, Inc. (“Meritain”) and Effingham 
County Board of Commissioners  (“Client”) as follows: 
 
1. FEE SCHEDULE 
 
A. Section 3 of the Fee Schedule is hereby amended to add the following new credit/allowance as follows: 
 

3. CREDITS/ALLOWANCES: 
 

Subject to any applicable terms and conditions set forth in this Section, the amount for any credit/allowance 
listed below will be credited towards the Administrative Rates until such credit/allowance amount has been 
reached. 

 

Credit/Allowance Type Amount Frequency/Availability Applicable Period 

Wellness Program Allowance▼ $3,000 
Per Year for the 

Applicable Period 
 

January 01, 2023 –  
December 31, 2023 

 
▼The wellness program allowance is limited to the amount, frequency/availability, and applicable period 
for this allowance set forth in the table above (the “Wellness Allowance”). The Wellness Allowance is 
intended to provide Client with an allowance of money from which Client can utilize to offset reasonable, 
identifiable expenses that Client may incur for its wellness program and activities provided to Participants 
under the Plan (the “Wellness Program”).  
 
The Wellness Allowance shall only be available for expenses incurred by Client in connection with the 
Wellness Program and may not be used for non-wellness services or services unrelated to the Wellness 
Program. Client’s receipt of the Wellness Allowance is subject to: (i) Client providing Meritain an invoice 
detailing the expenses incurred for the Wellness Program; and (ii) Meritain’s review and approval of such 
submitted expenses in accordance with Meritain’s then-current policies. Meritain will not credit the Wellness 
Allowance or any portion thereof if Client does not incur eligible expenses for its Wellness Program during 
the year. Any unused Wellness Allowance or allowance amount will not carry over nor can be applied to 
any subsequent year.    
 
Client represents and warrants that its use of the Wellness Allowance and any offering of prizes, gift cards, 
and/or giveaways in connection with the Wellness Allowance shall be in compliance with Applicable Laws. 
Client is solely responsible for filing any notices and/or forms, such as Form 1099, required by Applicable 
Law.  

 
2. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Any capitalized term not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Agreement. 
Except as specifically amended by the terms of this Amendment, all surviving terms, provisions, and fees of the 
Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed and the Agreement, as modified by this Amendment, remains in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 

 

257

Item XI. 8.



0123 – Effingham County Board of Commissioners – Amendment               Page 2 of 2 v020823 

In Witness Whereof, the parties have executed this Amendment on the dates set forth below. 
 
 

MERITAIN HEALTH, INC.  
EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

  

Name:  Michael S. Thomas  Name:  

Title:  Regional President  Title:  

Date:  August 09, 2023  Date:  

 
 

258

Item XI. 8.



BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into between the Effingham County 
Board of Commissioners health and   wellness   program   (the   
“Covered   Entity”)   and ZomoHealth, LLC (“Business Associate”). 

 

Whereas, Business Associate has been retained by the Covered Entity as 
its wellness program provider and will perform certain services on behalf of the 
Covered Entity with respect to activities of the Covered Entity as a “group health 
plan” as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

 
Whereas, in connection with the provision of such services by Business 

Associate, the Covered Entity may disclose to Business Associate certain 
Protected Health Information (as defined below), concerning the Covered Entity 
and its activities. 

 
Whereas, Business Associate and the Covered Entity desire to enter into 

a business associate agreement for the purpose of addressing the Privacy Rule, 
the Security Rule, and the Electronic Transaction Rule, (as those terms are 
defined below), and for addressing the privacy and security provisions set forth in 
the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (the 
“HITECH Act”), contained in Title XIII, Subtitle D, of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009. 

 
Therefore, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
Business Associate and the Covered Entity agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

 
The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning 

as those terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated 
Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, 
Notice of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information, Required by Law, 
Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health 
Information, and Use. 

 
1.1. “Agreement” shall mean this document, including all exhibits, attachments, 

and properly executed amendments and addendums. 
 
1.2 “Business Associate” shall generally have the same meaning as the term 

“business associate at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, and in reference to the party 
to this agreement, shall mean ZomoHealth, LLC. 

 
 
1.3 “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “breach” in 45 C.F.R. 

259

Item XI. 9.



2  

§ 164.402. 
 
1.4 “Covered Entity” shall generally have the same meaning as the term 

“covered entity” at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, and in reference to the 
party to this agreement, shall mean Effinghman County Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
1.5 “Electronic Health Record” shall have the same meaning as the term 

“electronic health record” in § 13400(5) of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009. 

 
1.6 “Electronic Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as 

the term “electronic protected health information” in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 
 
1.7 “Electronic Transaction Rule” shall mean the final regulations issued by 

the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services concerning standard 
transactions and code sets under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 162. 

 
1.8 “Individual” shall mean the person who is the subject of the Protected 

Health Information or a person who qualifies as the personal 
representative of the individual in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.502(g). 

 
1.9 “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually 

Identifiable Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and Part 164, 
Subparts A and E. 

 
1.10 “Protected Health Information” shall mean any information that: (a) relates 

to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 
Individual; (b) the provision of health care to an Individual; (c) or the past, 
present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an Individual; 
and that identifies the Individual or with respect to which there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the 
Individual. 

 
1.11 “Required By Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by 

law” in 45 C.F.R. § 164.103. 
 
1.12 “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and 

Human Services (“HHS”) and any other officer or employee of HHS to 
whom authority has been delegated. 

 
1.13 “Security Incident” shall have the same meaning as the term “security 

incident” in 45 C.F.R. § 164.304. 
 
1.14 “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards and Implementation 

Specifications at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A and C. 

260

Item XI. 9.



3  

1.15 “Transaction” shall have the same meaning as the term “transaction” in 45 
C.F.R. § 160.103. 

 
1.16 “Unsecured Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning 

as the term “unsecured protected health information” in 45 C.F.R. § 
164.402. 

 
ARTICLE 2. SAFEGUARDING PRIVACY AND SECURITY OF PROTECTED 

HEALTH INFORMATION 
 
 
2.1 Permitted Uses and Disclosures. Business Associate hereby agrees that 

to the extent it is to carry out one or more of Covered Entity’s obligations 
under Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, it will comply with the 
requirements of Subpart E that apply to Covered Entity in the performance 
of those obligations. 

 
Business Associate may not use or disclose protected health information 
in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 if done by 
Covered Entity, except for the specific uses and disclosures set forth 
below or as required by law. 

 
a. Functions and Activities on Covered Entity’s Behalf. Except as 

otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the parties hereby agree that 
Business Associate shall be permitted to use and/or disclose 
Protected Health Information provided or made available by the 
Covered Entity (or another business associate of the Covered 
Entity) only for the purpose of conducting the transactions 
contemplated under this Agreement and only for purposes within 
the scope of Business Associate’s representation of the Covered 
Entity. 

 
b. Business Operations. Business Associate is permitted to use 

and/or disclose Protected Health Information if necessary for the 
proper management and administration of Business Associate’s 
representation of the Covered Entity, or to carry out any legal 
responsibilities of Business Associate, provided that, with respect to 
any disclosure of Protected Health Information, either: 

 
(1) the disclosure is Required By Law; or 

 
(2) Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the 

person to whom the Protected Health Information is 
disclosed that: (a) the Protected Health Information will be 
held in confidence and used or further disclosed only as for 
the purposes for which Business Associate disclosed the 

261

Item XI. 9.



4  

Protected Health Information to the person or as Required 
by Law; (b) the person will use appropriate safeguards to 
prevent use or disclosure of the Protected Health 
Information; and (c) the person immediately notifies 
Business Associate of any instance of which it is aware in 
which the confidentiality of the Protected Health Information 
has been breached. 

 
c. Data Aggregation Services. Business Associate is permitted to 

use or disclose Protected Health Information to provide data 
aggregation services, as that term is defined by 45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.501, relating to health care operations of the Covered Entity. 

 
d. Minimum Necessary. Business Associate will, in its performance 

of the functions, activities, services, and operations specified 
above, make reasonable efforts to use, to disclose, and to request 
only the minimum amount of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information reasonably necessary to accomplish the intended 
purpose of the use, disclosure or request consistent with Covered 
Entity’s minimum necessary policies and procedures. Business 
Associate will not be obligated to comply with this minimum- 
necessary limitation if neither Business Associate nor Covered 
Entity is required to limit its use, disclosure or request to the 
minimum necessary. Business Associate and Covered Entity 
acknowledge that the phrase “minimum necessary” shall be 
interpreted in accordance with the HITECH Act. 

 
e. De-identification. Business Associate and/or its subcontractors 

are authorized to de-identify protected health information in 
accordance with the applicable requirements under 45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.514(a) and (b). 

 
2.2 Information Safeguards. 

 

a. Privacy of Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information. 
Business Associate will develop, implement, maintain, and use 
appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to 
protect the privacy of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information. The safeguards must reasonably protect Covered 
Entity’s Protected Health Information from any intentional or 
unintentional use or disclosure in violation of the Privacy Rule and 
limit incidental uses or disclosures made pursuant to a use or 
disclosure otherwise permitted by this Agreement. 

 
b. Security of Covered Entity’s Electronic Protected Health 

Information. Business Associate will develop, implement, maintain, 

262

Item XI. 9.



5  

and use administrative, technical, and physical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, 
and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information that 
Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on 
Covered Entity’s behalf as required by the Security Rule. 

 
2.3 Subcontractors and Agents. In accordance with 45 C.F.R. 

§§ 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, Business Associate 
will ensure that any subcontractors or agents that create, receive, 
maintain, or transmit protected health information on behalf of the 
business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and 
requirements that apply to the business associate with respect to such 
information. 

 
2.4 Prohibition on Sale of Records. As of the effective date specified by HHS 

in final regulations to be issued on this topic, Business Associate shall not 
directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any Protected 
Health Information of an Individual unless the Covered Entity or Business 
Associate obtains from the Individual, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.508, a valid authorization that includes a specification of whether 
the Protected Health Information can be further exchanged for 
remuneration by the entity receiving Protected Health Information of that 
Individual, except as otherwise allowed under the HITECH Act. 

 
2.5 Penalties For Noncompliance. Business Associate acknowledges that it is 

directly liable under the HIPAA Rules and subject to civil and, in some 
cases, criminal penalties for making uses and disclosures of protected 
health information that are not authorized by its contract or required by 
law. Business associate is also directly liable and subject to civil penalties 
for failing to safeguard electronic protected health information in 
accordance with the HIPAA Security Rule. 

 
ARTICLE 3. COMPLIANCE WITH ELECTRONIC TRANSACTION RULE 

 
If Business Associate conducts in whole or part electronic Transactions on behalf 
of Covered Entity for which HHS has established standards, Business Associate 
will comply, and will require any subcontractor or agent it involves with the 
conduct of such Transactions to comply, with each applicable requirement of the 
Electronic Transaction Rule. Business Associate shall also comply with the 
National Provider Identifier requirements, if and to the extent applicable. 

263

Item XI. 9.



6  

ARTICLE 4. INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS 
 
4.1 Access. Business Associate will make available to Covered Entity or, at 

Covered Entity’s direction, to an Individual (or the Individual’s personal 
representative) for inspection and obtaining copies Covered Entity’s 
Protected Health Information about the Individual that is in Business 
Associate’s custody or control, so that Covered Entity may meet its access 
obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. Effective as of the date specified 
by HHS, if the Protected Health Information is held in an Electronic Health 
Record, then the Individual shall have a right to obtain from Business 
Associate a copy of such information in an electronic format. Business 
Associate shall provide such a copy to Covered Entity or, alternatively, to 
the Individual directly, if such alternative choice is clearly, conspicuously, 
and specifically made by the Individual or Covered Entity. 

 
4.2 Amendment. Business Associate will, upon receipt of written notice from 

Covered Entity, promptly amend or permit Covered Entity access to 
amend any portion of Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information, so 
that Covered Entity may meet its amendment obligations under 45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.526. 

 
4.3 Disclosure Accounting. To allow Covered Entity to meet its disclosure 

accounting obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528: 
 

a. Disclosures Subject to Accounting. Business Associate will 
record the information specified below (“Disclosure Information”) for 
each disclosure of Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information, 
not excepted from disclosure accounting as specified below, that 
Business Associate makes to Covered Entity or to a third party. 

 
b. Disclosures Not Subject to Accounting. Business Associate will 

not be obligated to record Disclosure Information or otherwise 
account for disclosures of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information if Covered Entity need not account for such disclosures. 

 
c. Disclosure Information. With respect to any disclosure by 

Business Associate of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information that is not excepted from disclosure accounting, 
Business Associate will record the following Disclosure Information 
as applicable to the type of accountable disclosure made: 

 
(1) Disclosure Information Generally. Except for repetitive 

disclosures of Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information 
as specified below, the Disclosure Information that Business 
Associate must record for each accountable disclosure is (i) 
the disclosure date, (ii) the name and (if known) address of 

264

Item XI. 9.



7  

the entity to which Business Associate made the disclosure, 
(iii) a brief description of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information disclosed, and (iv) a brief statement of the 
purpose of the disclosure. 

 
(2) Disclosure Information for Repetitive Disclosures. For 

repetitive disclosures of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information that Business Associate makes for a single 
purpose to the same person or entity (including Covered 
Entity), the Disclosure Information that Business Associate 
must record is either the Disclosure Information specified 
above for each accountable disclosure, or (i) the Disclosure 
Information specified above for the first of the repetitive 
accountable disclosures; (ii) the frequency, periodicity, or 
number of the repetitive accountable disclosures; and (iii) the 
date of the last of the repetitive accountable disclosures. 

 
d. Availability of Disclosure Information. Business Associate will 

maintain the Disclosure Information for at least 6 years following 
the date of the accountable disclosure to which the Disclosure 
Information relates (3 years for disclosures related to an Electronic 
Health Record, starting with the date specified by HHS). Business 
Associate will make the Disclosure Information available to 
Covered Entity within 15 calendar days following Covered Entity’s 
request for such Disclosure Information to comply with an 
Individual’s request for disclosure accounting. Effective as of the 
date specified by HHS, with respect to disclosures related to an 
Electronic Health Record, Business Associate shall provide the 
accounting directly to an Individual making such a disclosure 
request, if a direct response is requested by the Individual. 

 
4.4 Restriction Agreements and Confidential Communications. Business 

Associate will comply with any agreement that Covered Entity makes that 
either (i) restricts use or disclosure of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(a), or (ii) requires confidential 
communication about Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information 
pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(b), provided that Covered Entity notifies 
Business Associate in writing of the restriction or confidential 
communication obligations that Business Associate must follow. Covered 
Entity will promptly notify Business Associate in writing of the termination 
of any such restriction agreement or confidential communication 
requirement and, with respect to termination of any such restriction 
agreement, instruct Business Associate whether any of Covered Entity’s 
Protected Health Information will remain subject to the terms of the 
restriction agreement. Effective February 17, 2010 (or such other date 
specified as the effective date by HHS), Business Associate will comply 

265

Item XI. 9.



8  

with any restriction request if: (i) except as otherwise Required by Law, the 
disclosure is to a health plan for purposes of carrying out payment or 
health care operations (and is not for purposes of carrying out treatment); 
and (ii) the Protected Health Information pertains solely to a health care 
item or service for which the health care provider involved has been paid 
out-of-pocket in full. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5. BREACHES 
 
5.1 Privacy or Security Breach. Business Associate will report to Covered 

Entity any use or disclosure of Covered Entity’s Protected Health 
Information not permitted by this Agreement along with any Breach of 
Covered Entity’s Unsecured Protected Health Information. Business 
Associate will treat the Breach as being discovered in accordance with 45 
CFR §164.410. Business Associate will make the report to the Covered 
Entity not more than 15 calendar days after Business Associate learns of 
such non-permitted use or disclosure. If a delay is requested by a law- 
enforcement official in accordance with 45 CFR §164.412, Business 
Associate may delay notifying Covered Entity for the applicable time 
period. Business Associate’s report will at least: 

 
a. Identify the nature of the Breach or other non-permitted use or 

disclosure, which will include a brief description of what happened, 
including the date of any Breach and the date of the discovery of 
any Breach; 

 
b. Identify Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information that was 

subject to the non-permitted use or disclosure or Breach (such as 
whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home 
address, account number or other information were involved) on an 
individual basis; 

 
c. Identify who made the non-permitted use or disclosure and who 

received the non-permitted disclosure; 
 

d. Identify what corrective or investigational action Business Associate 
took or will take to prevent further non-permitted uses or 
disclosures, to mitigate harmful effects and to protect against any 
further Breaches; 

 
e. Identify what steps the Individuals who were subject to a Breach 

should take to protect themselves; 
 

f. Provide such other information, including a written report, as 
Covered Entity may reasonably request. 

266

Item XI. 9.



9  

 

5.2 Security Incidents. Business Associate will report to Covered Entity any 
attempted or successful (A) unauthorized access, use, disclosure, 
modification, or destruction of Covered Entity’s Electronic Protected 
Health Information or (B) interference with Business Associate’s system 
operations in Business Associate’s information systems, of which 
Business Associate becomes aware. Business Associate will make this 
report once per month, except if any such Security Incident resulted in a 
disclosure not permitted by this Agreement or Breach of Covered Entity’s 
Unsecured Protected Health Information, Business Associate will make 
the report in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 5.1. 

 
ARTICLE 6. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
6.1 Term. This Agreement shall be effective on the date that Business 

Associate’s services to the Covered Entity commence and shall terminate 
when all Protected Health Information provided by Covered Entity to 
Business Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on 
behalf of Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if 
it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected Health Information, 
protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the 
termination provisions in this section. 

 
6.2 Right to Terminate for Cause. Covered Entity may terminate Agreement if 

it determines, in its sole discretion, that Business Associate has breached 
any provision of this Agreement, and upon written notice to Business 
Associate of the Breach, Business Associate fails to cure the Breach 
within 30 calendar days after receipt of the notice. Any such termination 
will be effective immediately or at such other date specified in Covered 
Entity’s notice of termination. 

 
6.3 Return or Destruction of Covered Entity’s Protected Health Information as 

Feasible. Upon termination or other conclusion of Agreement, Business 
Associate agrees to return all Protected Health Information received from 
the Covered Entity, or created or received by Business Associate on 
behalf of the Covered Entity, and not to retain any copies of the Protected 
Health Information after termination of this Agreement, if feasible in the 
reasonable opinion of Business Associate. If Business Associate elects to 
destroy the Protected Health Information, it shall certify to the Covered 
Entity that the Protected Health Information has been destroyed. Business 
Associate shall also obtain or ensure the destruction of Protected Health 
Information created, received, or maintained by Subcontractors or agents. 

 
6.4 Continuing Privacy and Security Obligation. If return or destruction of the 

Protected Health Information is not feasible, Business Associate agrees to 
extend the protections of this Agreement for as long as necessary to 

267

Item XI. 9.



10  

protect the Protected Health Information and to limit any further use or 
disclosure so as to be consistent with the intent of this Agreement. 

 
6.5 Need for retaining Protected Health Information for Certain Purposes. If 

Business Associate needs to retain Protected Health Information for its 
own management and administration, or to carry out its legal 
responsibilities, the following shall apply. 

 
Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, business associate, 
with respect to protected health information received from covered entity, 
or created, maintained, or received by business associate on behalf of 
covered entity, shall: 

 
1. Retain only that protected health information which is 

necessary for business associate to continue its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities; 

 
2. Return to covered entity [or, if agreed to by covered entity, 

destroy] the remaining protected health information that the business 
associate still maintains in any form; 

 
3. Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with 

Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health 
information to prevent use or disclosure of the protected health 
information, other than as provided for in this Section, for as long as 
business associate retains the protected health information; 

 
4. Not use or disclose the protected health information retained 

by business associate other than for the purposes for which such 
protected health information was retained and subject to the same 
conditions set forth in the Agreement which applied prior to termination; 
and 

 
5. Return to covered entity [or, if agreed to by covered entity, 

destroy] the protected health information retained by business associate 
when it is no longer needed by business associate for its proper 
management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities. 

 
6.6 Survival of Obligations. The obligations of Business Associate shall 

survive termination of this Agreement. 

268

Item XI. 9.



11  

ARTICLE 7. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 Access to Books and Records. Business Associate hereby agrees to 

make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use, 
disclosure, and safeguards for Protected Health Information received 
from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of the 
Covered Entity, available to the Secretary or the Secretary’s designee for 
purposes of determining compliance with the Privacy Rule and/or the 
Security Rule. 

 
7.2 Mitigation Procedures. Business Associate agrees to have procedures in 

place for mitigating, to the extent practicable, any deleterious effect from 
the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of the Covered 
Entity, in a manner contrary to this Agreement or the Privacy Rule. 

 
7.3 Amendment to Agreement. Upon the compliance date of any final 

regulation or amendment to final regulation promulgated by HHS that 
affects Business Associate or Covered Entity’s obligations under this 
Agreement, this Agreement will be automatically amended such that the 
obligations imposed on Business Associate or Covered Entity remain in 
compliance with the final regulation or amendment to final regulation. 

 
7.4 Choice of Law. Except to the extent superseded by the federal law, this 

Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Texas; provided, 
however, that for the purposes of privacy rights of Individuals, the law of 
the state in which the Individual resided during the event(s) giving rise to 
the need to determine the rights under this Agreement shall apply. 

 
7.5 Disputes. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to the 

Agreement will be finally settled by compulsory arbitration in accordance 
with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (“AAA”). 

 
7.6 Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding any rights or remedies provided for in 

this Agreement, the Covered Entity retains all rights to seek injunctive 
relief to prevent or stop the unauthorized use or disclosure of Protected 
Health Information by Business Associate or any agent, contractor, or third 
party that received Protected Health Information from Business Associate. 

 
7.7 Notices. Whenever under this Agreement one party is required to give 

notice to the other, such notice shall be deemed given if mailed by First 
Class United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

269

Item XI. 9.



12  

Covered Entity: 
 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 
804 S. Laurel Street 
Springfield, GA 31329 

 
 

Business Associate: 
 

ZomoHealth, LLC 
1700 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 
600 Houston, TX 77056 

 
 
7.8 Binding Nature and Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on 

Business Associate and the Covered Entity and their successors and 
assigns, but neither Business Associate nor the Covered Entity may 
assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
7.9 Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference and 

convenience only, and shall not enter into the interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

 
7.10 Force Majeure. Business Associate shall be excused from performance 

under this Agreement for any period Business Associate is prevented from 
performing any services pursuant hereto, in whole or in part, as a result of 
an act of God, war, civil disturbance, court order, labor dispute or other 
cause beyond its reasonable control, and such non-performance shall not 
be grounds for termination. 

 
7.11 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, if any 

legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this 
Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default, 
misrepresentation, or injunctive action, in connection with any of the 
provisions of this Agreement, each party shall bear their own legal 
expenses and the other costs incurred in that action or proceeding. 

 
7.12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the parties and shall replace any previous business associate 
agreement between the parties. There are no understandings or 
agreements relating to this Agreement which are not fully expressed in 
this Agreement and no change, waiver, or discharge of any obligation(s) 
arising under this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and executed 
by the party against whom such change, waiver, or discharge is sought to 
be enforced. 

270

Item XI. 9.



13  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Business Associate and the Covered Entity 
have caused this Agreement to be signed and delivered by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the date set forth above. 

 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:    

 

Print Name:    
 

Title:    
 

Date:    
 
 

ZomoHealth, LLC 
 
By:    

 

Print Name:    
 

Title:    
 

Date:    

271

Item XI. 9.



Page 1 of 3 

Client Services Agreement 

Company Name: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (the “Client”) 

(the “Effective Date”) Effective Date: November 3, 2023 

Term Length: 36 months (the “Initial Term”) 

Wellness Service Description 

Wellness Services will include: 

Wellness 
Services 

Pricing 

Data Collection Package 

- PreventionCloud Set Up and Support
- Online Health Risk Assessment
- Annual Physician Visit
- Tobacco Affidavit
- Online Data Collection
- All Wellness Forms
- Age/Gender Preventive Screenings
- Marketing Communications Toolkit
- Expanded Real-time reporting

$1.50 PEPM 

272

Item XI. 9.



Page 2 of 3  

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

This Client Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between ZomoHealth, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, whose mailing 
address is 1700 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 600, Houston, TX 77056 (“ZomoHealth, LLC”) and Client. 

WHEREAS, ZomoHealth, LLC desires to provide Client with wellness services and Client desires to obtain certain wellness services; 

WHEREAS, ZomoHealth, LLC and Client desire to formalize such an arrangement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

1. Term. ZomoHealth, LLC hereby agrees to provide consulting services to the Client for a period commencing on Effective Date and continue for 
the Initial Term. The term of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for an additional Renewal Period unless either party gives the other party written notice that 
such party does not intend to extend the term of this Agreement at least (i) thirty (30) days prior to the end of this Agreement if the Renewal Period is more than thirty 
(30) or (ii) at least ten (10) days prior to the end of this Agreement if the Renewal Period is less than thirty (30) days. 

2. Wellness Services. ZomoHealth, LLC shall provide wellness services to the Client during the term of this Agreement as described hereinabove as 
“Wellness Service Description” whereby ZomoHealth, LLC may provide to Client, Client’s employees and/or personnel that Client designates (“Participants”) and may 
make available to Client and the Participants ZomoHealth, LLC’s “PreventionCloud” software (the “Portal”) as specified in the Wellness Service Description. 

3. Fees and Payment. Unless otherwise stated in the Wellness Service Description, Client agrees to pay ZomoHealth, LLC fees within thirty (30) days 
from the date of invoice. Client will pay sales, use, customs, excise, import or export, duty, value-added, and other similar federal, state, or local taxes (other than taxes 
based on ZomoHealth, LLC’s net income), that may be incurred in connection with the provision of Wellness Services to Participants. Client shall be charged in accordance 
to a fee schedule as described on in the Wellness Service Description. 

4. Confidential Information of Participants. Specifically with respect to Participant information gathered through the provision of Wellness Services 
to such Participants, including, without limitation, health risk appraisal answers, medical history, laboratory test results and other personal information (“Confidential 
Participant Information”) as may be defined as Protected Health Information in the privacy standards adopted by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services as 
they may be amended from time to time, 65 Fed. Reg. 82462-82829 (“Privacy Standards”), the parties further agree to: (i) provide training to Clients of their respective 
workforces regarding the confidentiality requirements in the Privacy Standards and this Agreement; (ii) obtain reasonable assurances from persons to whom Confidential 
Participant Information is disclosed that such Confidential Participant Information will be held confidential and further used and disclosed only as required by law or for 
the purpose for which it was disclosed; (iii) require such persons to agree to immediately notify management upon becoming aware of any instances in which the 
Confidential Participant Information is used or disclosed for a purpose that is not otherwise provided for in this Agreement or for a purpose not expressly permitted by 
the Privacy Standards; and (iv) ensure that all disclosures of Confidential Participant Information are subject to the principle of “minimum necessary use and disclosure,” 
i.e., only Confidential Participant Information that is “the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure, or request may be disclosed.” 
Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, the parties shall enter into a business associate agreement as mutually agreed. 

5. Intellectual Property. 

a. Portal. The software and technology used by the Client to generate and provide the Wellness Services are protected by law, including, 
but not limited to, United States copyright law and international treaties. The copyrights and other intellectual property rights in this material are owned by the 
ZomoHealth, LLC and/or others. Except for the limited rights granted herein, all other rights are reserved. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
Client and its Participants may be given access and use to the Portal only through the login protocols and direct access URLs provided to the Client, but only 
for Client’s own internal purposes. All rights not expressly granted in this Agreement are reserved by ZomoHealth, LLC. Client is prohibited from (i) reselling, 
sublicensing, transferring, assigning, or distributing the Wellness Services; (ii) modify or make derivative works based upon the Portal or Wellness Services. 
(iii) "frame" or "mirror" the Portal or content on any other server or Internet enabled device, or (iv) reverse engineer, decompile the Portal or their enabling 
software for any purpose. 

b. Other Intellectual Property. Each party shall make good faith efforts to ensure that each party’s own intellectual property rights including 
trademarks or copyright material. Client agrees that, to the fullest extent legally possible, all intellectual property developed by ZomoHealth, LLC in the course 
of providing Wellness Services will be owned exclusively by the ZomoHealth, LLC. 

c. Use of Logos and Marks. Each party grants to the other a limited, nonexclusive, worldwide, royalty-free, non-sublicensable right and 
license to use, reproduce and display such party's trademarks for the sole and limited purpose of providing the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

d. End User Agreement. Client, Participants, and any other affiliated user that uses the Portal shall agree to the end user agreement 
containing certain terms and conditions of the Portal’s use at registration for each user of Portal. 

6. Confidential Information. The parties anticipate that each may disclose confidential information to the other. Accordingly, the parties desire to 
establish in this section terms governing the use and protection of certain information one party ("Owner") may disclose to the other party ("Recipient"). 

a. Definition of Confidential Information. For purposes hereof, "Confidential Information" means (i) the terms and conditions hereof, and 
(ii) non-public aspects of the Portal and the operation thereof, and the Services and additional services provided by ZomoHealth, LLC, and ZomoHealth, LLC’s 
business and technical information, and data. In addition, Confidential Information includes information which, although not related to the Wellness Services 
or this Agreement, is nevertheless disclosed hereunder, and which, in any case, is disclosed by an Owner or its affiliate to Recipient in document or other 
tangible form bearing an appropriate legend indicating its confidential or proprietary nature, or which, if initially disclosed orally or visually is identified as 
confidential at the time of disclosure and a written summary hereof, also marked with such a legend, is provided to Recipient within fifteen (15) days of the 
initial disclosure. 

b. Restrictions on Use and Disclosure. Recipient may use Confidential Information of Owner only for the purposes of this Agreement and 
shall protect such Confidential Information from disclosure to others, using the same degree of care used to protect its own proprietary information of like 
importance, but in any case, using no less than a reasonable degree of care. Recipient may disclose Confidential Information received hereunder only as 
reasonably required to perform its obligations under this Agreement and only to its employees who have a need to know for such purposes and who are bound 
by signed, written agreements to protect the received Confidential Information from unauthorized use and disclosure. 

c. Exclusions. The restrictions of this Agreement on use and disclosure of Confidential Information shall not apply to information that: (i) 
is in the possession or control of Recipient at the time of its disclosure hereunder; (ii) is, or becomes publicly known, through no wrongful act of Recipient. 
(iii) is received by Recipient from a third party free to disclose it without obligation to Owner, (iv) is independently developed by a party as evidenced by its 
written and dated records and without any breach of this Agreement; or (v) is the subject of a written permission to disclose provided by Owner. The Recipient 
may disclose Confidential Information of Owner pursuant to the requirements of a governmental agency or by operation of law, provided that such Recipient 
gives Owner written notice thereof as soon as practicable and reasonably cooperates with Owner to contest such disclosure. 

273

Item XI. 9.



Page 3 of 3  

7. Disclaimer of Warranty. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Portal and Wellness Services is provided "as is" without 
warranties, conditions, representations or guaranties of any kind, either expressed, implied, statutory or otherwise, including but not limited to, any implied warranties or 
conditions of merchantability, satisfactory quality, title, noninfringement or fitness for a particular purpose. 

8. Limitation of Liability. In no event shall ZomoHealth, LLC be liable to anyone for any direct, indirect, punitive, special, exemplary, incidental, 
consequential or other damages of any type or kind (including loss of data, revenue, profits, use or other economic advantage) arising out of, or in any way connected with 
the Wellness Services, including without limitation, the use or inability to use the Portal, or for any content obtained from or through the Portal, any interruption, 
inaccuracy, error or omission, regardless of cause, even if the party from which damages are being sought has been previously advised of the possibility of such damages. 

9. Notices. Any notice, request, demand or other communication permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly 
given when personally delivered to an executive officer of the ZomoHealth, LLC or to the Client, as the case may be, or when deposit ed in the United States mails, by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, at the respective addresses of the ZomoHealth, LLC or the Client as provided in this Agreement. 
Either party may change, by written notice transmitted in the manner prescribed above, the address to which notices are to be sent. 

10. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement if the other party commits any material breach of this Agreement, or the Business Associate 
Agreement, and fails to remedy such breach within thirty (30) days after written notice by the nonbreaching party of such breach. Upon the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement both parties will discontinue any use of the other’s trademarks and logos. 

11. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The 
courts of the State of Texas in the county of Harris, and the United States District Court for Southern District of Texas shall be the exclusive courts of jurisdiction and venue for 
any litigation, special proceeding, or other proceeding as between the parties that may be brought, or arise out of, in connection, or by reason of this Agreement. The parties consent 
to the jurisdiction of such courts. 

12. Severability Waiver. If any provision of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held in violation of any applicable law, and so much of said Agreement 
is held to be unenforceable, then the invalidity of such specific provision herein shall not be held to invalidate any other provision herein which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

13. Agency or Assignment. This Agreement is personal to each of the parties hereto, and, except as herein otherwise provided, neither party may assign, 
transfer in any way or delegate any of the rights or obligations hereunder without first obtaining the written consent of the other party. 

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and replaces any other Agreement, if any, between the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof. This 
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties respecting the furnishing of wellness services by ZomoHealth, LLC, and there are no representations, warranties, 
agreements or commitments between the parties hereto except as set forth herein. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing executed by the undersigned 
parties. 

15. Facsimile; Electronic Signature; Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals or counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to 
be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same document. A copy, electronic or facsimile of this Agreement shall have the same force and effect as that 
of an original. 

 
 

Executed as of the date first written above. 
 
 
 

ZomoHealth, LLC: Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

By:    
By: Authorized Party 

Name:    
 

Title:    

274

Item XI. 9.


	Top
	Item IX. 1.	CONSENT - eGPS
	1. Staff Report eGPS Renewal
	2.  Letter of agreement - eGPS

	Item IX. 2.	sanitation releases
	Sanitation memo
	sanitation forms

	Item IX. 3.	Enterprise
	1. Staff Report Enterprise
	7447226 2023 RAM 1500 BigHorn - Capt Hossalla_Completed
	7451412 2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 FIRE_Completed
	7455002 2023 Ford F-150 XLT (Harrington)_Completed
	7471147 2023 Ford F-150 #2
	7463585 2023 Ford Expedition_Completed
	P1258859 (3) 2023 Dodge Durangos_Completed
	7474368 2023 Ford F-150 (Jamie Thompson)
	Effingham Sheriff's Department Fleet Proposal P1276491_Completed
	P1258785 (12) 2023 Dodge Chargers_Completed
	7452161 2023 Dodge Durango (17327)
	7451777 2023 Ford F-150 XLT (Williamson)_Completed
	7451670 2023 Ford F-150 XL 4x4 (Humane)_Completed
	7451623 2023 Ford F-150 XL 4x4 (Edenfield)_Completed

	Item IX. 4.	ACCG SAFETY DISCOUNT FORM
	Safety Discount 2023
	2024 Safety Discount NON SIGNED Forms

	Item X. 1.	Exley Rezone
	T&T Presentment
	Exley 9-7 Submission

	Item X. 2.	Exley - 2nd Reading
	Exley PD doc
	466D-1,6,9,11_T&T Exley_RZ

	Item X. 3.	Kennedy Rezoning
	Kennedy Presentment
	Kennedy

	Item X. 4.	Kennedy - 2nd Reading
	Kennedy 2nd Reading
	302-167_Kennedy_RZ

	Item XI. 1.	NAACP Resolution
	resolution_ sr
	NAACP Resolution
	Final NAACP Flyer (6) (1) (1)

	Item XI. 2.	100th birthday resolution_Florrie White
	100th birthday resolution_sr
	Florrie White_ Resolution

	Item XI. 3.	Covered Bridge Phase 3 Final Plat
	Staff Report_Covered Bridge Ph. 3
	Warranty Deed - Covered Bridge Ph. 3
	Covered Bridge Ph. 3 - Final Plat
	Infrastructure Agreement - Covered Bridge Ph. 3
	Covered Bridge Ph. 3 Checklist
	Bond - Covered Bridge Ph. 3

	Item XI. 4.	TSPLOST Resolution _Call for Referendum
	2023 - Resolution - Call for Elections - Exhibit A - 9-14-23
	2023 TSPLOST Resolution - Call for Elections - 9-14-23
	GUYTON_TSPLOST Resolution
	Guyton Project List
	Rincon Project Sheet
	Springfield TSPLOST Project List

	Item XI. 5.	Surplus
	1. Staff Report - Resolution to Surplus
	Notice of Sale - Various

	Item XI. 6.	HGB CO for CEM
	1. Staff Report HGB Task Order
	2. Change Order Template
	2023-9-7 PRORPOSAL-ADDITIONAL TOPO

	Item XI. 7.	CINTAS AGREEMENT_AED DEVICES
	CINTAS Proposal 9.19.2023
	Effingham County- 12 month AED SA

	Item XI. 8.	MERITAIN AMENDMENT TO ASA_WELLNESS PROGRAM
	Amendment to ASA with Meritain Health 9.19.2023
	0123-Effingham County Board of Commissioners-Amendment (1)

	Item XI. 9.	ZOMO HEALTH ASA & BSA
	EffinghamCounty_ZomoHealth_BAA_2023
	EffinghamCounty_ZomoHealth_CSA_2023

	Bottom

